
   Department of Transportation 
   Board of Directors  
                         Notice of Public Meeting 
   1263 South Stewart Street 
   Third Floor Conference Room 
   Carson City, Nevada 
   October 8, 2012 – 9:00 a.m. 

   
AGENDA 

 
1. Presentation of Retirement Plaques to 25+ Year Employees – Informational item only. 

 
2. Presentation of Awards – Informational item only. 

 
3. Receive Director’s Report – Informational item only. 
 
4. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins. Informational item only. 

 
5. Approval of September 10, 2012 Nevada Department of Transportation Board of 

Directors Meeting Minutes – For possible action. 
  
6.         Approval of Agreements over $300,000 – For possible action. 
 
7. Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational item only. 
 
8. Condemnation Resolution – For possible action. 
 

a. Condemnation Resolution No. 436 – I-15 Freeway, from Desert Inn Road to the  
US-95/I-515 Interchange; Project NEON; in the City of Las Vegas, Clark County, NV 

 
9. Relinquishments – For possible action. 
 

a. Disposal of NDOT property located along a portion of County Road 716A (Smith 
Creek Road) in Elko County, NV  SUR 07-07 

b. Disposal of NDOT property located along SR-529 (Carson Street) south of Fairview 
Drive in Carson City, NV  SUR 12-01 
 

10. Quitclaim Deed – For possible action. 
 

a. Disposal of NDOT property located along portions of SR-564 (Lake Mead Drive)  west 
of Boulder Highway in the City of Henderson, Clark County, NV  SUR  11-06 
 

11. Public Auction – For possible action. 
a. Disposal of NDOT property located at 147 Broadleaf Lane in Carson City, NV  SUR 

11-13 
 

12. Approval of Amendments and Administrative Modifications to the FFY 2012-2015 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) – For possible action. 

 
13. Briefing on I-15 Mobility Alliance – Informational item only. 

  



14. Old Business 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only. 
b. Briefing on Freeway Service Patrol – Informational Item only. 
 

15. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 
Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins.  Informational item only. 

 
16.  Adjournment – For possible action. 
 
Notes:   

 
• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration 
• The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda 

at any time. 
• Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring 

to attend the meeting. Requests for auxiliary aids or services to assist individuals with disabilities or 
limited English proficiency should be made with as much advance notice as possible to the 
Department of Transportation at (775) 888-7440.  

• This meeting is also expected to be available via video-conferencing, but is at least available via 
teleconferencing, at the Nevada Department of Transportation District One Office located at 123 East 
Washington, Las Vegas, Nevada in the Conference Room and at the District III Office located at 1951 
Idaho Street, Elko, Nevada. 

• Copies of non-confidential supporting materials provided to the Board are available upon request. 
 

This agenda was posted at www.nevadadot.com and at the following locations: 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation 
1263 South Stewart Street 123 East Washington  310 Galletti Way 
Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada   Sparks, Nevada 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Governor’s Office   Carson City 
1951 Idaho Street  Capitol Building   885 East Musser Street   
Elko, Nevada   Carson City, Nevada  Carson City, Nevada 
 
Clark County   Elko County    
200 Lewis Avenue  571 Idaho Street 
Las Vegas, Nevada  Elko, Nevada 



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 September 17, 2012 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: October 8, 2012, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 2: Presentation of Awards – Informational Item Only 
  
 
Summary:  
 
This item is to recognize the Department of Transportation and staff for awards and recognition 
received. 
 
Background: 
 
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 
AMERICA’S TRANSPORTATION AWARD- America’s Top 10 Road Projects 
Northbound 395 Improvement Project 
 
NDOT’s Northbound 395 Improvement Project was recognized as one of the nation’s top 10 
road construction projects and is now in the running to be named the nation’s top project in the 
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials’ America’s Transportation 
Award competition.   
 
The project was recognized for early completion of quality, innovative road improvements that 
save both taxpayer time and money. Dynamic construction scheduling, partnering and 
innovative construction techniques were used to save approximately $188,000 and substantially 
complete five months ahead of schedule.  
 
Drivers can vote for the project to win the People’s Choice Award through Oct. 19 by logging 
onto www.americastransportationaward.org. The winners of both the Grand Prize and the 
People’s Choice Award will be announced on Nov. 18 and will be awarded $10,000 each to be 
donated to a charity or scholarship. 
 
Nevada Strategic Highway Safety Plan Awards 
EMERITUS AWARD- Susan Martinovich, Former Director 
LANE DEPARTURE SAFETY AWARD- Jim Ceragioli, Safety Engineer 
STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS ALLIANCE AWARD- Meg Ragonese, Public Information 
Officer 
 
Transportation, safety and public health agencies and groups across Nevada have implemented 
the Strategic Highway Safety Plan to reduce traffic deaths and serious injuries in five primary 
focus areas. Three NDOT staff members have been named for their efforts in increasing driving 
safety and saving lives. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



Former NDOT Director Susan Martinovich has been named as the emeritus award recipient for 
years of dedicated executive leadership of Nevada’s life-saving traffic safety initiatives.  
 
Almost 800 people died in a recent five-year period in Nevada traffic crashes in which a vehicle 
unintentionally left their lane due to unsafe driving or other causes. NDOT safety engineer Jim 
Ceragioli has been recognized for leading multi-agency efforts to reduce these deaths through 
engineering and other solutions.  
 
NDOT Public Information Officer Meg Ragonese was named for helping to lead the state’s 
integrated traffic safety public education campaigns, including the Zero Fatalities traffic safety 
awareness campaign which has reached more than 85 percent of urban Nevadans with 
important safe driving information. 
 
The White House 
TRANSPORTATION INNOVATORS CHAMPIONS OF CHANGE 
 
Former NDOT Director Susan Martinovich was recognized by the White House as a 
Transportation Innovators Champion of Change.  The honor recognizes leaders who spearhead 
innovative ways for transportation to help their community reach new heights.  
 
The honor specifically recognized Nevada Department of Transportation project delivery 
innovations such as the accelerated delivery program, which is accelerating nearly 30 road 
projects to completion to immediately benefit Nevada roads and economy. Also highlighted was 
the state’s Zero Fatalities traffic safety goal and public outreach campaign, which has brought 
agencies, groups and individuals across the state together to save lives on Nevada roads.  
 
Telly Awards 
BRONZE AWARD – Local TV/Cable Public Service 
Zero Fatalities “Crash” TV Public Service Announcement 
 
With traffic safety a top priority, NDOT has joined with partnering agencies to oversee the 
state’s Zero Fatalities traffic safety outreach campaign to save lives by educating motorists to 
drive safely. To date, the campaign has resulted in more than 63 million impressions and has 
reached over 85 percent of urban Nevadans.  
 
One extremely successful campaign element is television public service announcements. One 
of these TV ads features footage that reminds drivers to always drive safely by recreating the 
emotional impact of driving through a traffic crash scene. 
 
The TV spot received a bronze Telly Award. The awards are a competition honoring the very 
best film and video productions and outstanding local, regional and cable TV commercials and 
programs. 
 
American Society of Landscape Architects, California/Sierra Chapter 
PRESIDENT’S AWARD  
HONOR AWARD  
NDOT Statewide Landscape and Aesthetics Corridor Plan 
 
Landscape and aesthetic improvements to our highways not only enhance Nevada’s 
transportation system, but also improve and define cities and tourism. 
 
With the valuable input of stakeholders and community members, NDOT’s Statewide 
Landscape and Aesthetics Corridor Plan defines fundamental ways of planning, designing, 



building and maintaining these important landscape and aesthetic improvements as part of 
NDOT road projects. 
 
The comprehensive plan and its associated road projects received two separate recognitions 
from the California Sierra Chapter of the American Society of Landscape Architects for 
enhancing the quality of life of Nevada’s citizens and tourism through roadside aesthetics. 
 
Institute of Transportation Engineers – Intermountain Chapter  
TRANSPORTATION PROJECT OF THE YEAR  
West Mesquite Interchange Design-Build Project 
 
As part of the recently-completed West Mesquite Interchange Design-Build Project, NDOT 
utilized an innovative Accelerated Bridge Construction technique. New I-15 bridges were 
constructed next to existing bridges. Each existing bridge was then demolished, and new 
bridges slid into place overnight, reducing bridge construction time by six months while still 
allowing interstate traffic to flow smoothly using exit and on-ramps. 
 
Recognizing innovative design, construction and partnership between NDOT and the design-
build team of Horrocks Engineers and W.W. Clyde, the project was named the transportation 
project of the year in the intermountain region by the Institute of Transportation Engineers. The 
project was also previously recognized as the Nevada transportation proiect of the year by the 
Institute of Transportation Engineers. 
 
The project was constructed using the design-build method in which design and construction 
are more closely linked to produce time and cost efficiencies. Close interaction with local 
agencies and the public, as well as extensive partnering with the contractor, was also vital to the 
project. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
This is an informational item only. 
 
Attachments: 
 
None 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Meg Ragonese, Public Information Officer 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

1 

Governor Brian Sandoval 
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto 
Controller Kim Wallin 
Frank Martin 
Len Savage 
Tom Fransway 
Rudy Malfabon 
Lou Holland 
 

Sandoval: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.  I’d like to call the Department of 
Transportation Board Director’s meeting to order.  I understand that the 
Lieutenant Governor and the Attorney General are on their way, but we do 
have a quorum to begin.  So we’ll begin with Agenda Item No. 1 which is 
to receive the Director’s Report.  Mr. Malfabon. 

Malfabon: Good morning, Governor, Board members.  It’s been a while since we had 
our last meeting.  It was quite eventful as you recall, but I’m pleased to 
report that I’ve done a lot to talk to our divisions here at NDOT to find out 
where we need to change directions, where they have some things that are 
already in the works. 

 I wanted to know about where their contracts were with consultants and 
service providers, so we could get a good handle on cash flow.  We’ve 
been talking a lot about Project Neon, and we will present Project Neon at 
a later Board meeting, next month.  Also did a lot of talking with 
individuals that were interested in positions of leadership in the front 
office.  And I apologize to both Board members I wasn’t able to contact 
after speaking with you last Friday, Governor, but after receiving your 
blessing and trying to contact some folks that I was going to offer the 
positions to, I wasn’t able to reach a lot of the people that had contacted 
me about their interest, so I wanted to apologize to them as well for not 
getting back to them in person. 

 But I’m ready today to announce the leadership positions at NDOT.  For 
Deputy Director, I’ve selected Bill Hoffman.  Bill’s got a lot of experience 
in different divisions at NDOT, but I saw certain qualities in his leadership 
responsibilities recently, that he’s not defensive about NDOT when he’s 
working with other agencies or people within the department.  He’s 
always used a lot of thought and judgment in his thinking -- I mean, his 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

2 

decision-making process and I saw that it would also provide an 
opportunity for the future of NDOT.  I hope to work six more years, 
hopefully, as Director of NDOT under your leadership, Governor, if you 
run for reelection, hopefully, but… 

Sandoval: I’m in, I’m in. 

Malfabon: You and me both.  But I thought that for succession planning it would be 
good to get someone in there that’s got a few more years before 
retirement, so wanted to announce that Bill Hoffman will be the Deputy 
Director for NDOT up here in Carson City.  As Deputy Director for 
Southern Nevada, that’s a key position that somebody that works a lot 
with the local agencies, with the RTC of Southern Nevada, in particular, 
but also has the responsibility for overseeing the district engineer 
statewide, and I thought that Tracy Larkin Thomason was a good fit for 
that position. 

 She’s worked previously in District 2.  She’s worked tirelessly in the 
planning efforts and coordination with local agencies all across the state.  
And when she expressed her interest in relocating to Southern Nevada, I 
was quick to take her up on that offer after considering other folks that had 
expressed interest.  Tracy will do great down there in Southern Nevada. 

 For Assistant Director for Engineering, a lot of great candidates and this 
was a really tough decision for me because there are people up here in 
Carson City that have worked many years in engineering, understand the 
engineering challenges of the State of Nevada, but I’ve decided to appoint 
John Terry.  He’s in Southern Nevada right now as an Assistant Division 
Chief in project management. 

 John, like me, has worked for a consulting engineering company.  He 
worked for NDOT earlier in his career, left for about a dozen years or so, 
working for Sverdrup Civil, became Jacobs Engineering.  And he worked 
on the -- being project manager on that large design-build project in Salt 
Lake City right before the Olympics, so he’s got a lot of great engineering 
experience. 

 As I mentioned, Governor, he was instrumental along with me when we 
approached former Director Jeff Fontaine about developing an HOV plan 
in Las Vegas.  We saw that it needed to be a regional perspective and John 
was very instrumental in achieving that plan and bringing it to fruition, so 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

3 

I’m very comfortable with appointing him.  I think that bringing a 
Southern Nevada perspective up here, as I do to the Director’s position, 
will be good for the department. 

 And John is a great engineer.  And I’m also moving the Chief Engineer 
title to that Assistant Director of Engineering.  In years past that’s where it 
was before when Susan was the Assistant Director for Engineering, and 
I’m going to move it back to that position, which I think is appropriate. 

 Had quite a struggle also for Assistant Director for Planning.  There was a 
lot of good candidates, people within our own department.  I’ve decided to 
go with someone from outside the department who used to work for 
NDOT, Tom Greco.  Is Tom present today? 

Greco: Yes. 

Malfabon: Tom has worked about six years for RTC in Washoe County.  And he’s 
worked in the planning area there, primarily in the engineering areas at 
NDOT before he retired from NDOT.  Now he’s coming back to the fold 
and I appreciated him expressing his interest. 

 I think in planning, we want to get more into the -- getting an electronic 
STIP document rather than paper.  That’s one thing that I’ve noticed that 
we just need to improve on in several areas of NDOT.  We need to get 
more electronic, more digital, use less paper and, as you know, paper will 
clutter your desk before you know it.  It’s better to just get it in an email or 
have it linked on a server.  The STIP document is something that our folks 
in planning have shepherded and taken care of the whole time, but I want 
to get to the point where it’s more of an automated process. 

 The entries to the FHWA for their approval would be an electronic means 
and get more modern in that area.  And also I feel that in the planning area 
that we need to reach out more with the planning folks.  Typically we do a 
good job of reaching out to the public work folks that deliver the capital 
improvement projects in all those local agencies, but we don’t reach out as 
much to the planners as often as we do the public works folks, so I would 
like to have Tom lead that effort at NDOT. 

 And then with that, I have a great Assistant Director for Operations in 
Rick Nelson and a great Assistant Director for Administration in Scott 
Sisco.  Definitely I think that altogether we’re going to make a great team 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

4 

at NDOT and lead the way to a better future, one that’s going to be more 
focused on cash flow and doing the right projects. 

 And I think that we had our division chiefs working with their assistant 
directors on some things to select the right projects, and we’re going to go 
forward with those efforts, but we want to just focus on some future 
changes at NDOT, recognizing that we don’t have as much money in the 
highway fund as we used to, so we have to be very deliberative and focus 
on the right projects and programs. 

 Other things to mention in the Director’s Report, we underwent an audit 
about a year ago from the Environmental Protection Agency on our storm 
water program, which is part of the Clean Water Act.  They didn’t have 
any fines, I’m pleased to say, but we have a lot of work to do.  We’ve met 
with environmental and the EPA as well as our state folks that deal with 
natural resources. 

 So we’re going to work together and implement a better process and 
program here at NDOT so that we can do the right thing according to the 
Clean Water Act, but also avoid any kind of fines that would -- definitely 
we wouldn’t have the wherewithal to face what other states have faced in 
those areas where they’ve received substantial fines from EPA.  So we’re 
glad that we’re working with the EPA representatives.  They acknowledge 
the fact that they were impressed that several members of our front office 
met with them to commit to achieving those goals in the storm water 
pollution prevention program. 

 Governor, as you know, you were part of several celebrations the last 
couple of months on opening 580.  The Bowers Mansion Interchange will 
open in about a month.  I-80 substantially complete, probably late 
September, this month.  I’ve driven on it this weekend and a lot of the 
lanes are open but still some work being done there, so we’ll try to get all 
those barrels and cones out of the way by the end of the month. 

 I-15 South Design-Build, Governor, you were present at the deal opening, 
or the celebration with the Las Vegas Convention Visitors Authority.  I 
will be giving a presentation to the authority tomorrow morning to kind of 
recap the project which was funded primarily by them, as well as a little 
bit by Clark County for the Sunset Bridge. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

5 

 One of the issues that’s been coming up a lot lately is in rural areas of the 
state, a lot of speed limit reduction requests and we are going to give an 
opportunity in public comment hopefully.  I think Garth Dall wanted to 
address the Board about Armargosa Valley on U.S. 95.  We had a request 
from Pioche on U.S. 93 and a small community called Palm Gardens.  It’s 
actually near the cutoff to Laughlin on U.S. 95. 

 So all of these small, rural communities have speed concerns.  NDOT does 
follow a certain process as well as it’s a consistent process throughout the 
nation for all the DOTs on how they assess that 85 percentile or 85 percent 
of the traffic is going a certain speed, and that’s what’s considered safe.  
So we do speed studies and we have a certain procedure from an 
engineering perspective. 

 Obviously there’s personal concerns with safety in some of these rural 
communities, so in order to avoid liability though we follow our 
engineering process in establishing speed limits.  We also have a study 
going on by the University of Nevada, Las Vegas, that’s looking at 
consistency in establishing rural speed limits because a lot of -- you go to 
some rural communities, you’ll slow down to 25.  Others it seems like it 
slows down to 45 or 35.  So we want to see is there some inconsistencies 
and UNLV will have that report done in few more months, but interested 
to see what their findings are in that aspect of rural speed limits. 

Sandoval: Before you move on, there was a story in the Gazette Journal today about 
Texas has gone up to 85 miles an hour.  Is that something we’re looking at 
here in the State of Nevada? 

Malfabon: By a show of hands?  No.  I think that because of our focus on safety, 
Governor, we want to keep it at 70.  I think that that’s a good balance 
between our long distances between some of our communities, but it’s a 
safety issue.  And as you know, in Nevada, we have a lot of straight 
stretches with not a lot of stuff to keep people attentive, so we want to 
keep it at 70, I think I would recommend.  We’ll have to see how that 
goes, though, with Texas and their higher speed limits. 

Sandoval: Well, I just heard someone say they thought it was 85 already, so… 

Malfabon: As I said, we will bring back more specific information on the Project 
Neon unsolicited proposal.  This will give us time to really look at those 
numbers and present information individually to all the Board members so 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

6 

that they understand it clearly.  Oftentimes you’ll receive a Board packet 
and not have enough time to digest the information in it.  And Project 
Neon’s such a huge commitment that we want all of the Board members to 
be briefed on the specifics of that unsolicited proposal and the financial 
aspects of that and the risks to the state, and the benefits.  So with that, 
that concludes my Director’s Report. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much.  Questions from Board members?  Tom? 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Thank you, Rudy.  Just one short question about 
the speed limit requests.  Are they coming from a particular entity or is it 
just… 

Malfabon: We typically receive them from town advisory boards or county 
commissions, sometimes cities or towns will send in those requests.  
Usually it’s a government or a government related agency that sends them 
in.  Occasionally there might be a personal letter from an individual, but 
typically it’s associated with a local government. 

Fransway: Okay.  And you did say UNLV is studying that? 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Fransway: And when did you say that they would come back with some conclusions? 

Malfabon: Is Ken Chambers in the audience?  June of 2013 is the date that -- so mid-
2013 is when they’ll have their findings. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Any further questions.  Southern Nevada, do you have any questions for 
the director? 

Martin: No, sir. 

Sandoval:  One last question, Mr. Director, is that I-80 east to get off onto 395 which 
is to be 580, I guess, pretty soon here permanently.  I’d like an explanation 
why 395 won’t be 395 anymore, just out of curiosity.  But in any event, 
the traffic was queued all the way back to almost South Virginia Street.  Is 
that just a function of that there’s only one lane and soon there will be 
two?  Going southbound. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

7 

Malfabon: It was because of the work going on and I know that they had some 
accidents also last week that delayed traffic.  As far as the 580 
designation, it was always intended.  We had to get federal approval of 
that.  As long as the highway meets certain criteria for interstate standards, 
we can make that type of request, but we were able to get the Federal 
Highway Administration’s approval and get those shield signs up for 580 
so that now it’s signed all the way into Carson City as 580. 

Sandoval: Any further questions? 

Malfabon: That also, Governor, makes it eligible for interstate maintenance funds, so 
that’s a good thing too.  That makes us more flexible in accessing federal 
funds for that. 

Sandoval: Excellent.  We’ll move on to Agenda Item 2, public comment.  Is there 
any member of the public in Southern Nevada that would like to provide 
public comment to the Board? 

Martin: No, there’s none. 

Sandoval: Is there anybody here in Carson City?  Yes, sir. 

Operator: Hello.  Welcome to the conferencing system.  Please enter the conference 
number followed by the pound key or press star to create a new 
conference. 

Hof: Good morning.  My name is Dennis Hof, Garth Dull represents me and he 
couldn’t be here today, so I’m here to give -- 

Operator: Please enter the conference number followed by the pound key. 

Hof: I don’t know it. 

Operator: Or press star to create a new conference. 

Sandoval: Excuse me, Mr. Hof.  Is there a technical issue that we need to handle?  
Please proceed. 

Operator: Please enter the conference number followed by the pound key or press 
star to create a new conference. 

Hof: So just go for it? 

Sandoval: Yes, please. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

8 

Hof: Okay.  I’ll make this brief.  I just had a knee replacement so it’s a little 
hard for me to get around.  I bought a piece of property in Southern 
Nevada, right at the corner of Intersection 95 and 373. 

Operator: Please enter the conference number followed by the pound key or press 
star to create a new conference. 

Hof: It’s a combination of a truck stop, gas station, restaurant, bar, convenience 
store and a brothel.  And as I bought this property, I didn’t understand the 
traffic patterns there.  And what it is it’s 70 miles an hour coming from 
Beatty or coming from Indian Springs all the way.  People don’t slow 
down… 

Operator: Please enter the conference number followed by the pound key or press 
star to create a new conference. 

Hof: …in this area.  (Inaudible) brothel than the population of Luning, Mina 
and Goldfield combined every day.  And you have a lot of tourists there 
coming to Death Valley on the 373 which is very confusing.  It’s a very 
dangerous area and I’d like to get that speed limit lowered to just like 
Goldfield, Tonopah, Mina and Luning and Indian Springs, 25 miles an 
hour.  I’ve got letters from the state assemblymen.  There’s also a letter 
from the Armargosa Town Board that went to NDOT.  And that’s my 
concern.  We need to slow that traffic down before it becomes a huge 
problem. 

 You’ve got all these tourists coming through there.  They don’t know 
where they’re going.  They’re European tourists.  They’re looking to go to 
Death Valley.  And then you’ve got the truckers rolling through there and 
as everybody knows, 70 doesn’t mean 70, 70 means about 79 because 
they’ll ticket them at 80.  The NHP does not ticket until you get to 80.  
And everybody knows it, including myself, so I need your help. 

Sandoval:  Thank you, Mr. Hof.  I won’t comment on the NHP.  I’m sure they have 
their own policy, but I would encourage you to work with NDOT staff 
because, as you’ve heard the Director’s Report, there were some other 
communities that had requested reductions in speed limits, so that’s 
certainly front and center with regard to some of the issues that are before 
the Director. 

Hof: Thank you. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

9 

Sandoval:  You’re welcome.  Is there anyone else present who would like to provide 
public comment to the Board?  Hearing none, we will move on to Agenda 
Item No. 3, approval of July 23, 2012 Nevada Department of 
Transportation Board of Director’s Minutes.  And I think we set a record 
for the number of pages and length of time, but whoever did this, thank 
you.  I know that was a lot of work to get this down.  But do any Board 
members have any changes or corrections they’d like to make?  Hearing 
none, the chair will accept a motion for approval. 

Wallin: Move to approve. 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: There’s a motion by Madam Controller for approval, second by Member 
Martin.  Any questions or discussions on the motion?  Hearing none, all in 
favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval:  Opposed, no? 

Cortez Masto: Governor, this is Catherine.  Because I wasn’t at the meeting, I’m going to 
abstain from approving the Minutes. 

Sandoval: All right.  So the vote is unanimous in approval.  Madam Attorney 
General has abstained from the vote.  Agenda Item No. 4, approval of 
contracts over F dollars. 

Malfabon: Governor, Scott Sisco, Assistant Director for Administration, will address 
this. 

Sisco: Thank you.  Governor, members of the Board, before I get in on No. 4 real 
fast, I just want to give you an update on the aircraft situation.  The 
recruitment has closed now.  We’re waiting on HR to go through the 
applications for a chief pilot.  Hopefully, probably three weeks we’re 
going to be down.  We’ll get the chief pilot positions filled and then, as 
you all know, or most of you that fly the plane regularly know, the 
secondary pilot also left his position.  And as soon as we get the chief pilot 
filled, we’ll get that position filled. 

 Now, depending on if they have a certain number of hours in this 
particular plane, it may take us a little while to get them certified and into 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

10 

it, so we are probably looking at still probably three to four more weeks of 
you making alternate accommodations.  And I apologize.  It happens when 
you have a small flight operation, but we’ll get on it just as quickly as we 
can. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  And just a comment.  We’re going to miss Marcus and Brian.  
They were wonderful public servants and they did a great job for our state 
and I wish them well.  But I also understand that we’re taking advantage 
of this time to do any deferred maintenance that needs to be done on the 
planes. 

Sisco: That is correct.  We actually have it in Sacramento right now trying to get 
some things taken care of. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Great.  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you.  Scott, when did you say you were going to be taking the 
applications? 

Sisco: They’ve been taken and the recruitment closed, I believe, last week.  And 
HR, like I say, is going through them.  One of the difficulties is the class 
specification calls for 300 hours in the previous year on that exact plane 
and we’re looking at that.  Hopefully, we’re going to get some good, 
qualified apps.  If not, we may end up having to slightly change it.  In the 
future, when we look at that class specification, we may take it for that 
type of plane versus that specific plane, turbo jet. 

Fransway: Thank you.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sisco: Thank you, Governor.  I apologize for jumping in there, but I know I’ve 
had several questions and there’s some interest there, so I thought I would 
go ahead and take advantage of that.  Moving on, Item No. 4, approval of 
contracts over $5 million.  This particular case this month we just have 
one contract, and this is unique.  You’ll notice a slight change in the memo 
because this is a CMAR agreement for the Moana Lane Interchange. 

 On Page 3 of 23, after Attachment A, you will see we’re recommending 
awarding of this contract to Granite Construction in the amount of 
$6,970,978.  This is a little bit confusing because right above that, you’ll 
see it says Surety Consultants at a $6.9 million.  That’s actually our 
independent cost estimator’s amount.  The way that CMAR works is we 
plugged that in there to make sure that we’re on track as we go through 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

11 

this process.  And Granite Construction is who we are recommending 
award to.  Now, I do have Bill Hoffman here.  If you’re interested in 
hearing more about this project, I will get him up here. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  Madam Controller? 

Wallin: Yes, I have a question on it.  Since this is -- and CMAR’s new to me and 
to the Board as well.  Maybe the Board understands it better than me here.  
But we have in here, in the contract, we’re giving them a risk reserve of 
$280,000.  And my understanding of the CMAR is that the contractor 
takes the risk and we talk about the significant terms and conditions of 
construction documents starts out, says, “All costs associated with change 
orders or extra work resulting from conflicts, ambiguities, errors or 
omissions in the documents will be borne by the contractor without 
reimbursement by the department.” 

 The next item says that, “In no case shall the amount paid to the contractor 
exceed the GMP construction bid regardless of increases or decreases in 
the actual quantity of any particular item.”  And then we have a risk 
reserve, so I’m kind of confused what this is.  And if the contractor 
doesn’t use it, if we have to have this, do we get this money back?  That’s 
my other question too. 

Hoffman: Good morning.  Bill Hoffman, for the record, Governor.  To you, Madam 
Controller, there were a series of risk workshops that Granite and NDOT 
and Stanley consultants worked through during the course of the 
negotiation and they identified four risks; high ground water, coordination 
with the RTC widening project that’s currently going on, underground 
utilities and weather delays.  Those were risks that they tried to mitigate 
and avoid the best they possibly could, but there was still some risk left 
that we needed to share with the contractor. 

 Just in terms of our normal project process, design-bid-build, there were 
still risks that we thought we mitigated to the best possibility that we could 
of mitigating those, but we have parked those in this risk reserve area of 
$280,000.  So if we get into one of these areas or a couple of these areas 
and we need to pay for this work, we’re going to have to go into that risk 
reserve.  If we don’t use any of the risk reserve, that $280,000 is a savings 
to the State of Nevada, so it will not be used. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

12 

Malfabon: Madam Controller, just to add, it’s really case of do we want the 
contractor to bid that risk and then we pay that without them running into 
that problem, or do we want to share that risk and then we’ll end up 
paying rather than them getting a windfall or them getting an out-of-
pocket to the extent that it really hurts them on making a profit.  So it is a 
philosophy that we commonly see on these where we have to share the 
risk. 

Wallin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Any further questions from Board members?  Member Fransway? 

Fransway: Thank you.  I just noticed on the first page where it mentioned in the 
background that there was a separate preconstruction agreement.  And this 
is our first CMAR, but will there be -- will that be the norm or is separate 
separate? 

Hoffman: Actually, I had this prepared, so I might as well use it. 

Fransway: Because it seems that it was very beneficial for the department. 

Hoffman: Yes, Member Fransway, I would agree wholeheartedly that this was a 
very, very good process and it was a huge benefit for NDOT, State of 
Nevada.  I want to thank Granite Construction, Stanley Consultants, 
Jacobs Engineering and all the NDOT staff that worked on this.  They did 
a tremendous job, but what I was going to go over very briefly was just the 
process here. 

 So this was the process that the Board approved back in December.  In 
March we did move forward.  There was an approval to move forward 
with this process, so we had negotiated the preconstruction contract.  So 
those are the services that the contractor will come in during the design 
phase and help NDOT understand the project. 

 And then we’re here today and that’s Board approval of the GMP and all 
the documents that you have in your binder.  And we will, just as a note, 
we will be back next month and the month after with Board approval for 
the preconstruction services piece of future CMAR contracts. 

Fransway: Okay.  So basically then, the memo that states it’s a separate 
preconstruction agreement really wasn’t separate?  It’s part of the process. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

13 

Hoffman: It’s part of -- yes.  It’s part of the process and it’s part of the project, but 
there are two phases in this process, because if we move forward and have 
the contractor come in and help with the design, we still have the option.  
If we can’t reach a GMP, we still have the option to advertise the project. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval:  Any questions from Southern Nevada? 

Martin: Yes, sir, I have two.  The $500,000 that we previously awarded is included 
within the $6.9 million; is that correct? 

Hoffman: That is correct, Member Martin. 

Martin: And the 6.9 -- I’m sorry, go ahead. 

Hoffman: Well, what I was going to point out is if you turn back to the -- we actually 
included a bid tab, a series of -- well, it’s actually the bid tab sheets for 
this project.  Anywhere you see state furnished items, those are the items 
that we went out with and purchased earlier.  That was part of the 
amendment that we made to the precon services contract.  But anywhere 
you see installation of state furnished materials, those are the items and 
those are part of the 6.9 million, yes. 

Martin: Can you tell me what page that’s on, ‘cause I haven’t found it yet? 

Hoffman: It is -- well, it’s in the very back of your packet, Member Martin. 

Malfabon:  It’s on Page 5 of 8. 

Martin: Okay.  Now I’ve got it.  So just to clarify one more time, the 500 grand 
that we approved for pre-purchase of materials is included in the 6.9? 

Hoffman: Well, I just had -- Jenica Fenidy (sp?) just came up, she works in project 
management.  The 500,000 was the purchase just for the material.  That 
was just to buy the materials.  Now we’re paying the contractor, so that 
was separate, so that material purchase is separate from the 6.9 million.  
What we’re doing is paying the contractor to now install the signal poles, 
the soil nail walls, you know, some of those other long lead items that we 
needed previously. 

Martin: So the true budget on this thing is 7.4? 

Hoffman: Yes, that’s true. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

14 

Martin: And how much was the preconstruction contract? 

Hoffman: We paid Granite, so far, I believe it’s $280,000. 

Martin: And that’s not included in the 6.9 either? 

Hoffman: No, it is not. 

Martin: So you’re really talking about $7,700,000, not 6.9 million? 

Hoffman: That’s correct. 

Martin: Okay.  Could I request the next time you present one of these things you 
give us the entire picture? 

Hoffman: Yes, sir. 

Martin: Len, do you understand where I’m going here? 

Savage: Yes, I do, Member Martin.  At the same token, I would like to commend 
the staff and the contractor.  I know, I look back on the March and April 
meeting minutes and very close to the original budget amount.  And I 
know there’s a very quick start and completion on this project, completion 
by mid-November.  And I think that’s exactly what the CMAR project 
process is for, but I’m in agreement with Member Martin, for future, that 
the entire numbers be presented.  That’s all I have at this time. 

Martin: I agree.  In this instance CMAR does work and I’m a supporter of CMAR 
absolutely, but I just -- without having to go back one, two or six months, 
when we’re asked to approve something finally, I think it behooves us as a 
Board to know exactly what the total commitment has been from the State 
of Nevada. 

Hoffman: Okay.  That was an oversight on my part, so I apologize, and we’ll make 
sure that we have all costs associated with the next CMAR project when 
we present at each stage throughout the process to ask for approval. 

Sandoval:  Just have a cumulative… 

Martin: Thank you. 

Sandoval: …sheet from here on. 

Hoffman: Yes, Governor. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

15 

Sandoval: We’re good. 

Hoffman: That’ll be no problem. 

Sandoval: Any further questions?  And will you be this close on all the estimates in 
the future? 

Hoffman: We hope so.  Actually, through that process, we think we can get that 
close.  We think we can.  We do.  We worked with a very good contractor, 
Granite Construction Company.  NDOT staff did a wonderful job. 

Sandoval: Very impressive. 

Hoffman: It was good. 

Sandoval: Any further questions from Board members?  Hearing none, the chair will 
accept a motion for approval. 

Savage: Governor… 

Martin: So moved. 

Savage: I’d like to make a motion to approve Contract 3518 to Granite 
Construction. 

Sandoval: And that would be in the sum of… 

Savage: $6,978,978. 

Sandoval: There’s a motion by Member Savage, a second by Member Martin.  
Question from Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Do we need to make reference of the other costs 
that were involved in preconstruction as we discussed? 

Sandoval: I think not because we already approved those. 

Fransway: Okay. 

Sandoval: As I said, I think the point today is just if we have a running total of how 
much the cost of the project is, that’ll be beneficial to the Board.  Any 
further questions or discussion on the motion?  Hearing none, all in favor, 
please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

16 

Sandoval: Opposed, no.  Motion passes unanimously.  Thank you very much.  You 
did great work. 

Malfabon:  Thank you, Governor.  And we will request that you be available after the 
Board meeting adjourns to sign the contract so that we can keep going on 
the project. 

Sisco: Thank you.  Governor, I’ll just mention on there, when we put this 
package together, we were trying real hard to be consistent with previous 
contracts, so in the future, what I heard here today was if it’s a CMAR, 
we’ll just add an additional summary on there and then reference it.  But 
we were trying to keep -- we worked so hard to get a format down that 
moved smoothly for everybody, that I know Bill took the blame, but 
mostly it was mine in trying to get the format here. 

Sandoval: And, again, I don’t think anyone’s being pejorative here.  It’s just a matter 
of being up-to-date on what the costs are, and we all learn.  This is a new 
process, and so we’ve learned something today and we will include that in 
future CMAR contracts.  That’s all we have for Agenda Item No. 4, 
correct? 

Malfabon: That’s correct. 

Sandoval: All right.  Well move on to Agenda Item No. 5, approval of agreements 
over $300,000. 

Sisco: Thank you, Governor, members of the Board.  Behind Tab No. 5, and in 
particular on Pages 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6, we have four different agreements that 
are over $300,000.  Most of them are just regular type of operating 
agreements.  I’ll just kind of open it up if there’s any questions that you all 
would have on those four agreements. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members with regard to Agenda Item No. 5. 

Savage: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  It’s regarding Line Item No. 1 to Mandalay 
Communications Incorporated.  I’d just like to know has this been done 
historically?  And if so, how long and where? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

17 

Larkin Thomason: Tracey Larkin Thomason.  Yes, it has been.  This is a slightly different 
form this year.  We have been doing this for at least a dozen or more years 
that I’m aware of.  Basically, they go out and they take pictures.  They 
run.  It’s a photo logging of all the highways, and it’s used as a reference 
system within the department.  You can access it online so you can 
quickly check, like, number of lanes, lane widths, signage. 

 This year it’s a little bit more, we combined with the materials division 
and with the location division so that when going out we’re also picking 
up additional information specific to their areas.  So it’s one contract 
covering three divisions instead of having three different areas go out. 

Savage: Thank you, Tracey.  And has this contractor worked for the department in 
the past? 

Larkin Thomason: Yes, it has. 

Savage: On the same issue? 

Larkin Thomason: Yes. 

Savage: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Further questions from Board members? 

Wallin: Governor? 

Sandoval: Madam Controller. 

Wallin: Thank you, Governor.  I have a question on Item No. 4, that’s the Clean 
Street.  There’s only one bidder on that.  Can you comment and… 

Sisco: Let me bring… 

Wallin: Have they done work for us before and… 

Malfabon:  Madam Controller, Clean Street has worked for us before in District 1.  
We had identified street sweeping and highway sweeping as one of the 
areas that we could contract out.  We put several requirements in there so 
that we know that we avoid the problems that the City of Sparks had with 
their sweeping contract when they privatized some of that work.  We still 
intend to keep our sweeping crews busy. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

18 

 Often we can increase the frequency on some of the other routes that we 
sweep, but we feel that even though that it was only one bidder on this, it’s 
very specialized work and they have to use specialized equipment for air 
quality purposes.  So we were comfortable in proceeding with the 
agreement. 

Wallin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Malfabon:  We will also have a report to the Board about the pros and cons of this 
type of proposition effort, collecting the information that’s -- the part in 
the contract and will present that to the Board later after we have enough 
information to access how effective this program is working. 

Sandoval: And that was going to be my question.  So this was work that was 
formerly done by the department that we’re now outsourcing? 

Malfabon:  Yes.  So it’s a certain amount of what we call arterial streets in Las Vegas.  
This one is freeway sweeping in District 2 in Reno, so we’ll get a good 
take on both types of sweeping operations and how they do it effectively 
and compare the costs to what in-house is. 

Sandoval: So this is exclusively for freeway sweeping ‘cause my next question was 
are we cleaning some of these -- is this an expense associated with our 
cleaning of roads that are state highways but are more local streets? 

Malfabon:  Yes.  The one in Vegas is more local streets and we’ll have that 
comparison in the report. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller? 

Wallin: So you’ll come back to us with what their performance is and… 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Wallin: …what it would cost us and stuff.  And then to that same point, I know, I 
think last time we met we approved the striping contract or whatever that’s 
performance-based and you’ll give us some follow-up on that too as well. 

Malfabon:  Yes. 

Wallin: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Are there any questions in Southern Nevada? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

19 

Martin: None from here.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Any other questions from Board members?  Hearing none, the chair will 
accept a motion for approval of the agreements over $300,000 as 
described in Agenda Item No. 5. 

Fransway: Governor, I would move to approve the agreements over 300,000 as 
presented. 

Sandoval: We have a motion by Member Fransway.  Is there a second? 

Wallin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Madam Controller.  Any questions or discussion on the 
motion?  Hearing none, all in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no.  Motion passes unanimously.  We will move on to Agenda 
Item No. 6, contracts, agreements and settlements. 

Sisco: Thank you, Governor.  You’ll all notice that you have quite a collection of 
them this time around.  You basically have three months worth ‘cause we 
didn’t have a meeting in July.  In August we set aside information only 
items as a result of the interviews and everything else (inaudible) so you 
have three full months worth here. 

 As we always do, we’ve reviewed these prior to the meeting and went 
down and looked to see if there was any that we wanted to specifically call 
your attention to.  We really didn’t have that, so I’ll just open it up to any 
questions and everybody here is prepared to respond to any of the specific 
ones you may have. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Questions from Board members? 

Savage: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you.  Mr. Sisco, I have a few items of questions here, beginning 
with Line Item No. 25 with Clean Harbors Environmental on the culvert 
cleaning in Lake Tahoe.  Rudy had acknowledged that there had been 
some environmental reviews and audits.  And I’d just like to be reassured 
that the contractor is partnering with the department in the same respect 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

20 

with this audit and any concerns they might have.  I guess what I’m 
asking, have there been any issues with the contractor regarding this 
culvert cleaning in Lake Tahoe? 

Hoffman: Good morning.  Bill Hoffman again.  Line Item 25, this is at the south end 
of Washoe Valley and was part of McClary (sp?) legal settlement and 
we’re outsourcing the cleaning of these reinforced concrete boxes as part 
of that settlement. 

Savage: So it’s more than Lake Tahoe? 

Hoffman: It’s part of that, so we’ve amended the contract to include cleaning of this 
reinforced concrete box.  We needed it done on short order, and in order to 
save the state money in terms of state forces work and to free up and to be 
flexible with our district maintenance folks, we decided to outsource this 
work. 

Savage: So it was an extension of the current contract? 

Hoffman: Yes. 

Savage: Okay.  Thank you.  Next question, Governor, is No. 55.  On this lease if 
you could please explain to me, it comes out to about $12,500 per month 
and what takes place on this property? 

Sisco: Let’s bring up our Right of Way Chief here.  Paul. 

Saucedo: So for the record, Paul Saucedo, Chief Right of Way Agent.  Mr. Savage, 
that’s a piece of property that we’re currently in discussions with.  We’ve 
made an offer on the property.  And a lot of times when a tenant will move 
out of a piece of property, we will rent that property to hold vacant, to 
avoid damages to the property.  And so this is part of the federal program 
that allows us to do that.  And so we are leasing it; we are in ownership of 
it, or not ownership, but possession of it as far as the lease is concerned, 
but this is really part of the acquisition process and part of ongoing 
negotiations with the property owner. 

Savage: Is it occupied by the department? 

Saucedo: No, it is not.  It’s vacant. 

Savage: And it’s a structure? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

21 

Saucedo: Yes, sir, it’s part of the Neon Project.  We’re going to be acquiring the 
entire parcel.  And the tenants of that property have vacated and so this is 
a lease from the actual owner to hold vacant. 

Savage: And how large is the property? 

Saucedo: I don’t have that off the top of my head, I’m sorry. 

Malfabon: Paul, the lease amount is typically determined from the amount of the 
appraisal of the property, right?  There’s a certain process that you use to 
establish the amount of the monthly… 

Saucedo: Yes, sir.  I’m sorry, that’s what you’re getting at.  Yeah, the appraisal will 
set that lease rate or depending on what the actual property owner was 
receiving for that lease, and I believe, in this case, we matched what the 
property owner was receiving because he did have a lease with the tenant, 
long-term lease.  And so this is kind of a loss for him, or for them, because 
their tenants are now gone, and so we’ve picked up that lease -- actually, 
entered into a new lease, but we picked up that amount from that existing 
lease. 

Savage: So he still benefits with the revenue of the lease, but I would imagine that 
this is a final negotiation where this $150,000 would come off the final 
sale price? 

Saucedo: Well, no.  Because it’s kind of more of a loss of income.  He would have 
received this -- if we wouldn’t have shown up on the doorstep, that tenant 
would still be there, and so because of our relocation program, we 
relocated the tenant, and so we’re picking up this loss.  This is kind of a 
loss for the property owner.  In other words, if we wouldn’t have come 
along, this lease would have been ongoing, he would have been receiving 
the income from that lease, and because of our actions, his tenant has now 
vacated and we’re trying to maintain that so we don’t have a loss of 
income for that owner. 

Savage: I’m just concerned about the department’s action and concerned of 
occupying the building, possibly by the department. 

Saucedo: That’s something we could look at.  Like I said, we do have a lease with 
the property owner.  We could look at that as an option.  It’s something 
we’ll put forward to the district to see if there’s some need. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

22 

Savage: Okay. 

Saucedo: We can do that. 

Savage: Thank you.  Moving on to the next item, No. 8… 

Sandoval:  Member Savage, before you move on, may I ask a question in regards to 
the 55?  So how long do you expect to be paying the lease amount for the 
empty space?  I guess that’s one of the… 

Savage: That’s the key question.  That’s what it looks like here. 

Saucedo: On this particular one, Governor, it’s going to turn into a legal question.  
We are negotiating with the property owner.  I would imagine at the time 
that we obtained legal right of entry from the courts, that would be when 
we would stop that payment.  But this particular property, it will be 
referred for condemnation I believe soon, if it already has not. 

Sandoval: No, and I understand the policy of it.  It’s just, if I may, I think Member 
Savage’s concern and my thought was we’re paying a lot of money for an 
empty space and we’d like to convert that money to a purchase rather than 
continuing to pay for that. 

Saucedo: Yes, sir. 

Sandoval: Please proceed, Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  Moving on to Line Item No. 87.  Again, the tech 
side is not my (inaudible), so please understand, but what I was noticing, 
the original contract was a $10,000 amount issued in June of 2010 and 
now we’re at $594,000 in June of 2013.  And I guess my question is, I just 
wanted a little explanation as to why the small amount to begin with and 
why the 594. 

Sisco: We’ve been trying to get more narrative into these descriptions and there’s 
two different things that you see on here on a regular basis; approved by 
the BOE or these MSA contracts.  And in order to try to get everything out 
and open and be as transparent as possible, we’ve been putting these on 
these things.  But these are actually a state purchasing contract.  And what 
we do when we need something from a master services agreement, from 
state purchasing, we go out.  And in this particular case, they started way 
back when and they got this database administrator and the initial 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

23 

agreement for whatever period of time it was that they gave to, through 
this MSA, through state purchasing, to this contractor was for $10,000. 

 And then, literally, each month they go back or a couple months at a time 
they’ll go back, project that they need him for this much more time and 
this much more time.  So that’s one of the things that I’ve discovered is 
going through these and trying to add up original plus a minimum, plus a 
minimum, plus a minimum, they just don’t because we give these 
agreements in that amount of money, but we may not ultimately use that 
amount of money.  It’s an estimate on what we’re going to use, and it’s 
state purchasing’s contract.  So it’s somewhat confusing to the process 
because we’re trying to put them out there so you all see them, but the 
numbers never add up. 

Savage: So I guess my next question is, what time would it go out to bid? 

Sisco: They state purchasing division goes out to bid on these MSAs every two 
years. 

Savage: Every two years.  Okay. 

Sisco: But you don’t see those through us because the Board of Examiners sees 
them. 

Savage: Okay. 

Sisco: They’re multi-million dollar contracts. 

Savage: Thank you. 

Wallin:  Governor, can I do a follow-up question on this?  I know that the state has 
lots of these MSAs and we have all these computer consultants and what 
have you.  And in our office, if we have to hire people from the outside, 
we make sure that we train somebody inside so we don’t have to keep 
hiring because they’re doing work for the state on the outside.  The lowest 
one we’ve seen was 125 an hour and usually they’re $250 an hour, and 
we’re paying our people maybe $40 an hour.  So are you guys trying to 
take that knowledge transfer and put it in-house so we can… 

Sisco: It’s actually -- yes.  And I’m glad you brought that up because it’s a little 
bit of both.  One is yes, wherever it’s a temporary program that’s not 
going to go on, we have an end date on these and we try to transfer that 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

24 

knowledge to our people.  But in our budget process that’s being 
submitted at this time, we’ve actually taken five of these MSAs that we’ve 
identified that we could hire state employees less expensive for and 
convert them to FTEs and we’ll actually have a sizeable savings.  It’ll be a 
decision unit within our budget that will be a negative amount because we 
will pay less for a state employee than we will. 

 There’s some of these, such as database administrators, we just can’t 
compete.  For what the state pays for IT people and database 
administrators, we just can’t compete on them, but we have identified the 
majority of them where we can convert them over to state positions and 
save money. 

Wallin:  Yeah, I know it’s hard for the database administrators.  I mean, we lucked 
out in our office.  We do have somebody that does that so we save money.  
But the savings are substantial.  I think we’ve saved probably about 
$900,000 by not having to go outside this last year, so… 

Sisco: It is, and we’re trying to do that wherever we can. 

Savage: And the last question, Governor, would be Line Item No. 89.  Just need a 
further explanation on the amount that was granted to HDR.  To me it 
looked like the original amount was 1,485,000.  The new amount is 
3,194,000, which is almost double the original amount and it says 
allowing for contract closeout.  And that just caught my eye.  I would like 
to hear further explanation. 

Hoffman: Governor, Bill Hoffman, for the record.  The amendment that actually 
adjusted the cost or increased the funding amount for this was approved 
July 18, 2011.  So I went back and dug into this a little bit knowing that 
this would probably garner a question.  What we’re working on just today 
is just to extend the -- we’ve just extended the contract timeframe to allow 
closeout of that project.  So in order to wrap that project up and get it 
complete, we needed a little bit more time. 

 We weren’t going to add any scope or budget at this point, but just over a 
year ago, we did add -- we did take it from 1.4 million to 3.1 million.  The 
contract or the agreement was for original procurement support, so when 
we went out and solicited for proposals, HDR was assisting us in doing 
that.  So with their knowledge that they brought in, design-build 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

25 

knowledge, procurement of design-build contractors, and going through 
that process, that’s who we had hired originally for that 1.4 million. 

 Now, as we were moving down the path and we were starting down the 
design-build contract side, we needed support services, consultant support 
services, to actually help administer the projects, so project management 
support.  We also had design review support and all of those support 
activities and services that are part of a design-build contract.  And 
because HDR was so familiar with that contract and those services to 
procure, we amended the agreement and allowed HDR to then continue 
those services during the construction phase of the project, design and 
construction. 

Savage: So, Mr. Hoffman, simply said, this is much more than contract closeout? 

Hoffman: Yes, yes, it is.  It is.  So the description or the note probably doesn’t do it 
justice or service.  The time extension that we just went through is to help 
-- we’re looking beyond the closeout time period.  We want them to help 
us do that, is close that project out.  I know you and other Board members 
are very concerned about closing projects out as quickly as we can, and 
we’re having HDR help us do that; develop procedures, processes, 
guidelines to do that for all design-build projects.  So we’re just trying to 
get to the tail end.  So to hurry up and answer your question, it was more 
than that originally. 

Malfabon:  That is a standard on design-build contacts, we procure the -- or we get 
into an agreement with that firm to help us procure the design-build firm, 
and then we have a second -- we have an amendment to add those services 
should we decide to go forward with the project. 

Savage: Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Director.  And thank you, Mr. Hoffman.  You 
answered my questions and I think it’s something we can discuss further at 
the next CWG meeting as well.  So I thank you for your answers.  Thank 
you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Could whoever, I just need an explanation on 
something that’s foggy for me.  And I want to go back to Line Item No. 
25, King Harbor’s Environmental culvert cleaning, Lake Tahoe.  I notice 
on the note that it states legal settlement requiring the cleaning of box 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

26 

vaults and culverts under 395 and old 395 at the southern end of Washoe 
Valley.  Was does that have to do with Lake Tahoe? 

Hoffman: Member Fransway, Bill Hoffman, for the record.  It doesn’t have anything 
to do with Lake Tahoe per se.  What we wanted to do is bring a contractor 
onboard immediately so that we could abide by this legal settlement of 
having the box culvert cleaned as soon as possible, right away, and then 
on an as-needed basis, at least annually.  But it’s the same contractor that 
is helping us clean out drop inlets and do, you know, sediment removal 
from Lake Tahoe. 

Fransway: Okay.  What I understand, it relates to regulations established by the 
TRPA.  And some time ago I asked Ms. Martinovich if the State of 
California was also participating in the effort to keep sediment out of the 
lake.  Obviously, Nevada is and being that that’s a regional treasure, I 
want to make sure we’re not the only one that is onboard to protect it. 

Hoffman: Yes, Member Fransway, that is taking place.  Caltrans is towing the line, 
so to speak, and they’re in this with us just as much and we’re all trying to 
reduce sediment load into the lake, work on total maximum daily load, this 
newer, more stringent process of the lake.  But this box culvert is separate 
from the Lake Tahoe work.  It just happens that that same contractor is 
doing work up at Lake Tahoe and down in Washoe Valley just because 
they could respond very quickly. 

Malfabon: I think that what we can gather from the Board’s concern is that we need 
to look a little bit into procuring these services rather than extending or 
amending agreements to get more competition and get a competitive bid 
on these.  We do have the ability to do the smaller contracts using a quote 
process if it’s an issue of timeliness.  We can get those done very quickly.  
So we’ll take those concerns to heart and try to have competitive bids on 
these rather than amendments to existing agreements. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you, Bill.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Further questions from Board members? 

Wallin: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

27 

Wallin: Line Item No. 100.  That is Solberg Ovenchink (sp?) Consulting.  They’re 
doing government-auditing services.  Can you just comment on what 
they’re providing for us or what they’re doing? 

Malfabon:  Each one of our agreements has to be audited and this is for internal audit 
division to have outside assistance in closing out our projects in a more 
timely manner.  They do the auditing that we would normally do in-house 
with internal audit.  Typically all consultant agreements, all of the federal 
aid agreements are audited so that we make sure that if we find that either 
we owe them money or they owe us money, the auditors find that out and 
then we act upon those findings. 

Wallin: I know that one of the issues that came up in CWG is the fact that when 
our own internal audit does the audits on the closeouts, they audit 100 
percent of everything, which is not what you do in auditing.  You do a risk 
assessment.  Is this the same company that’s going to design a manual so 
our staff can start doing a risk assessment? 

Malfabon:  No.  I think it’s a separate company and it is two different things.  One is 
the agreements that are audited are usually using the best practices for 
auditing, for CPAs.  But what we’re talking about, 100 percent audit was 
on the construction projects.  We check 100 percent of the bid items, so 
every quantity is checked in those documentation books that we keep.  On 
these agreement audits, it’s a different process and they don’t do 100 
percent.  They do the standard practices for generally accepted accounting 
purposes. 

Wallin: Are these the ones that are auditing our consultants to make sure our 
consultants have done the performance or is this… 

Malfabon:  Yes, they do audit consultant agreements. 

Wallin: Okay.  Would it be possible to share with the Board the results of some of 
these audits? 

Malfabon:  Sure. 

Wallin: Their audit report?  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Questions from Southern Nevada? 

Martin: None here, sir. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

28 

Sandoval:  I have just a couple.  Contract 37, the contract with the Tahoe 
transportation district and the bikeways.  Whereabouts are those, do you 
know?  It says Douglas.  I know it’s Douglas County, but specifically 
where in Tahoe. 

Hoffman: Bill Hoffman, for the record.  Tracey, I’m not -- is this the bike path?  So 
this is between Nevada Beach Road and South Shore Stateline; is that 
right?  I know I kind of answered with a question, but we believe that this, 
yes, is from Stateline to Nevada Beach Road or Elks Point Road.  There’s 
a portion of a multi-use path that needs to be completed.  It’s part of the 
Tahoe Transportation District’s regional plan and it’s just part of that… 

Sandoval: I’m glad to see that.  I just wanted specifically where it is and it alleviates 
traffic up there and gives an improved outdoor experience for the people 
who go up there is a good thing.  I was just curious specifically where it is. 

Hoffman: Sure.  And we can provide all the Board members with maybe a little one-
page info sheet on the project, where it is, how it’s going to be phased and 
funded.  Would that -- we could do that if it would be helpful. 

Sandoval: No.  And, again, this is me putting on a few hats, but we’re working on it 
with the Department of Tourism to continue to portray Lake Tahoe as such 
a great destination, and if a piece of that is the hiking and the biking, that 
you can do things up there that you can’t do anywhere else, and the 
accessibility.  And if we can continue to work together, so if you could 
provide that to Tourism as well, they’re coming up with a new branding 
plan and a big piece of that is going to be the outdoor experience that you 
can have here.  And the more they’re familiar with the resources that we 
have, the better. 

Hoffman: Will do, governor. 

Sandoval: So that’s what that is.  And then on 47, which is the funding for historical 
markers, and this is kind of, again, where I’ve been having the opportunity 
and privilege to be seeing a lot of faraway places in the State of Nevada, 
and those historical markers are a great part of that experience.  I know 
there are a lot of people that like to have their picture taken and want to 
have their picture taken by every single one of those.  So the contractor is 
the State Historical Preservation Office? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

29 

Sisco: That is correct.  And although this is under another division, I used to be 
over that department, so I can share, the State Historical Preservation 
Officer receives money from us in order to hire somebody that goes out 
and restores and adapts those historical markers throughout the state. 

Sandoval: So the State Historical Preservation Office will, in turn, find a contractor 
to take care of that? 

Sisco: That is correct. 

Sandoval: Okay.  That’s all I have.  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  As you mentioned, Line Item 37, I just have a 
question on that.  Would that be a potential funding resource for the 
TIGER Grant? 

Malfabon:  I think that this one was funded by -- is this the SNPLA?  Oh, this was 
with the… 

Larkin Thomason: Tracy Larkin Thomason.  I’m not sure I’m going to be able to answer it 
fully.  There was a large number of funding sources for this and the 
primary project, of course, is from the Tahoe, the TRPA, I’m sorry, Tahoe 
Transportation District has been putting it together.  We are participating 
with them on different sources and they applied for some -- the project’s 
middle program, they’ve got some money via that from us. 

 There were some other funding sources.  And I’m sorry, I don’t have all of 
them off the top of my head.  But it could be, and mostly likely they have 
put in for different grant monies, but I don’t know -- I know it has not 
been successful going for TIGER and I do not believe it’s been one of the 
ones that was submitted.  Normally we submit for about four or five 
TIGER Grants throughout the state and it usually has to be ones that are 
very ready to go and they’re usually considerably more.  We’re usually 
asking for much larger amounts than this type of project. 

Fransway: Okay.  The reason I asked that is it was brought up to me by Douglas 
County and they were concerned that we did not get the TIGER Grant 
allocation last time.  And I explained to them that it was kind of deferred 
to Arizona because of the situation with the bridges and that.  And he 
mentioned it and I believe his concern was this project, about the bike 
trails.  And so I just want to go to him and tell him that the bike trail was 
still funded. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

30 

Larkin Thomason: The bike trail for Southern Nevada -- which is the Douglas County.  I’m 
sorry.  South Shore demo.  The South Shore demo for the bike path is 
funded. 

Fransway: Okay. 

Larkin Thomason: They did lose some funding -- which funding was it?  Dennis, it wasn’t 
SNPLA.  I can’t remember if it was SNPLA Funds or some other funding 
that they -- it was a question, I’m sorry.  It was like Question 10, so they 
had lost some funding up there with that.  Some of that was made up with 
the project submittal funding, which NDOT did.  It went through a bidding 
process within NDOT.  It was prioritized and it met the criteria and we’ve 
provided the funding for that portion.  This is the Phase 2A and I think 
there’s another one, 2B, coming up which is one of our CMAR projects.  
It’ll be coming up soon.  Does that answer your question? 

Fransway: It does. 

Larkin Thomason: One thing about the TIGER Grants though, it is the federal government 
when it goes in that actually does the selection of what gets forwarded -- I 
mean, what gets allocated. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you, (inaudible).  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Hearing no further questions, Agenda Item 6 is an informational item 
only, so we will not be taking any action on that.  We will move on.  
Unless you had anything further? 

Sisco: We have, yes, two more sections there.  That was B and we have C.  
Sorry.  6C is emergency agreements.  We have two emergency agreements 
to tell you about under Attachment C.  And it’s basically just the 
continuation of the FAST program in Northern Nevada as well as in 
Southern Nevada during the time in which we’re trying to complete the 
RFP process.  As you all recall, we had some concerns on the MBE 
requirements and what not, so we took it back out to bid, and 
unfortunately it’s just not going as fast as we would like, and so we had to 
extend it yet again.  And I won’t promise you that you won’t see it one 
more time. 

Sandoval: All right.  And then at some point, and this is a thought I just had, can we 
get an analysis of what the cost per service is, so every time they assist 
somebody? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

31 

Sisco: Okay. 

Sandoval: Thank you. 

Sisco: Cost per service. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Governor, along the same lines, I had a couple of questions on this 
because I know this came up in the March and April meetings.  And the 
concerns follow the Governor’s regarding the cost benefit analysis.  I think 
it would be very helpful to get a report over the past two years from the 
contractor for the incidents and the reports of those individual incidents, 
because I notice that we spend close to -- over $12 million over the last 
five years for this service.  And I know it’s a very good service.  I’m 
concerned about the cost benefit analysis to ensure that the dollars are 
correct for the value.  Thank you. 

Sisco: Okay.  We’ll add that to the list.  And then we have also 6D, which is a 
report on the settlement of the last BOE meeting.  And, Mr. Holland, did 
you want to touch base on that? 

Holland: I’m sorry. 

Sisco: Item No. 6D is a report on the settlement at the last Board of Examiners 
meeting. 

Holland: I don’t have the… 

Malfabon:  This is the one, Governor.  I was present at the Board of Examiners 
meeting.  It was a parcel along Blue Diamond Road that became 
landlocked or located by the railroad tracks.  And we built a new bridge 
over the railroad tracks, so this property owner was landlocked.  And we 
achieved a settlement with the owner and also talked to Clark County 
about paving some local roads for access to this parcel. 

 Clark County, by agreement, owed us some -- we’re amending the 
agreement with Clark County on the Blue Diamond Project because we 
put in some flood control improvements.  And they actually are admitting 
that agreement to give us nearly $1 million of other fees that they 
collected from developers in that area because NDOT made some other 
improvements such as traffic signals. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

32 

 So they’ll be spending some of that money on paving their local roads to 
give access to this parcel, and the surplus of those funds will come to 
NDOT.  So it’s a good settlement.  Clark County’s participating by 
transferring some of their collected fees from developers and everybody 
will be okay in the end, that he’ll get his paved road. 

 It also affected another settlement property.  It actually wasn’t a 
settlement, but we went to court and prevailed in court and you previously 
heard about that issue.  We were being sued for several millions of dollars 
and settled for hundreds of thousands of dollars -- I mean, the judge’s 
decision was for hundreds of thousands. 

Sandoval: And even in this case, if I recall correctly, we settled for less than the 
value -- I mean, yes, we settled for less than the value of the property, so 
this was a very good result for the department and the state. 

Malfabon:  Yes. 

Sandoval: Any questions for Board members from the remainder of Agenda Item No. 
6? 

Sisco: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Thank you, sir.  Agenda Item No. 7, public auctions. 

Malfabon:  Governor, when there’s a -- when a parcel is over 5,000 square feet, we do 
put it out for public auction.  You’ll see in Item No. 8 that’s coming up, 
there’s some direct sales to adjacent property owners, but that has to do 
with the size of the parcel.  So No. 7 is for disposal of NDOT property and 
all of those parcels over 5,000 square feet in size. 

Sandoval: Do any Board members have any questions with regard to Agenda Item 
No. 7?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  It mentions a fair market value being obtained for 
these different parcels.  My question is, is that where they start with the 
opening bids on these as the lowest bid acceptable? 

Saucedo: Paul Saucedo, for the record, Chief Right-of-Way Agent.  Yes, Mr. 
Fransway.  Typically on these we will get a fair market value for the 
property and then the bids start at 10 percent below fair market value and 
that’s in the NRS statute. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

33 

Fransway: Okay.  That answers that.  Thank you. 

Saucedo: You’re welcome. 

Sandoval: Any further questions?  Southern Nevada, do you have any questions with 
regard to Agenda Item No. 7? 

Martin: No, sir. 

Sandoval: Hearing no further questions, the chair will accept a motion. 

Fransway: Governor, I would move to approve the parcels for disposal as indicated in 
Items A though F. 

Sandoval: We have a motion for approval of the items described in the Agenda as 7A 
through F by Member Fransway.  Is there a second? 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Martin.  Any questions or discussion on motion?  
Hearing none, all in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no.  Motion passes unanimously.  Agenda Item No. 8. 
Mr. Director. 

Malfabon:  Governor, Board members, on No. 8, these are the parcels that are less 
than 5,000 square feet and considered remnant parcels that we want to 
dispose of.  We have a process where we checked whether there’s any 
need to retain these parcels and we don’t need them, so we’re bringing 
them to the Board as a direct sale to adjacent property owners. 

Sandoval: Any questions from Board members on Agenda Item No. 8A and B?  
Hearing none, Chair will I accept a motion for approval? 

Savage: I’ll move to approve Agenda Item 8, both A and B, for direct sales. 

Sandoval: Member Savage has made a motion for approval of Agenda Item 8A and 
B.  Is there a second?  Second by… 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: …Madam Controller.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
Hearing none, all in favor, please say aye. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

34 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no.  Motion passes unanimously.  Agenda Item No. 9, approval 
of Administrative Modifications to 2012/2015 STIP.  Ms. Larkin? 

Larkin Thomason: This is actually a fairly short list.  There are no amendments and we are 
coming to the end of the federal fiscal year, so this should be pleasant for 
me.  Administration for the RTC of Southern Nevada, the Administration 
Modification No. 7, basically it just transfers some CMAC funds over to 
the FTA section, just a straight transfer.  These are funding that is 
primarily under the jurisdiction of the local entity. 

 Administration Modification No. 8, it is the additional increases, the NHS 
funding for the freeway service patrol from 1.5 million in FY12 to 3.13 
million and 3.8 million in ‘12, ‘13 and ‘14 respectively.  And 
Administration Modification No. 9, this is -- actually there was no 
addition of money.  It was really just a cleaning up of the scopes, some 
description changes we put there. 

 And Administrative Modification No. 10, it was adding $475,000 of 
public lands highway funding to the F-Street Project.  Administration 
Modification No. 12, this is some -- it adds some funding, a project and 
funding, into the local, their transit system funding.  And just for general 
information, the one-call one-click phone call is basically, that’s where the 
call centers work with the chronic disease center and people can call in for 
transit rides to the hospital or to the medical centers and so on, so it’s in 
there. 

 For Washoe County, we have an administration… 

Sandoval: Excuse me. 

Larkin Thomason: I’m sorry. 

Sandoval: I thought I’d catch you now before you move to Washoe on this Southern 
Nevada… 

Larkin Thomason: I didn’t move fast enough. 

Sandoval: This is associated with that question on the freeway service patrol.  We’re 
essentially doubling the amount of money for that in ‘12, ‘13 and ‘14.  Do 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

35 

you know what the underlying reasons are for doubling that amount of 
money? 

Malfabon: On the freeway service patrol, we were re-procuring it and we determined 
that we wanted -- since it was federal aid, we wanted to put a 
disadvantaged business enterprise goal, so minority contracting goal on it.  
Because of the way that we pay freeway service patrol providers is by the 
driver per hour, so there’s not a way to pay directly for a sub, and there’s 
not direct involvement of a subcontractor, so it’s more supplies or support 
function. 

 In procuring that, we wanted to have the language developed that told the 
service provider how are we going to count achievement of that 
percentage.  We had a three percent goal for DBEs.  And we talked with 
all of the providers that had put in for it, because we had gone out for 
procurement, they didn’t meet it to our satisfaction.  One provider had it 
for if they wrecked their vehicle and they were going to take it to a body 
repair shop, they were going to use a firm for that. 

 And we thought, well, that’s not -- that’s kind of just if you need it you’re 
going to spend it on that.  We thought that they should do better at trying 
to achieve that goal monthly service or an annual service that’s going to 
definitely get paid out to (inaudible) contractors.  So we decided to re-
procure it, but we were running out of time on the existing contract, so we 
extended their contract.  That’s why it doubled, because we extended the 
time period while we were doing the re-procurement for freeway service 
patrol provider in Washoe County and Clark County. 

Sandoval: It’s not agendaized this way, but I’m curious just to get a little more 
background.  I probably could speak for Member Savage as well, as what 
the scope of that service is.  So I have a flat tire, that’s pretty obvious, they 
stop and help me.  If my car heats up, they stop and help me.  But what the 
scope of their service… 

Malfabon: We definitely will do that.  I know that there’s so many hours of operation 
and so many days of the week primarily, as well as the weekend, that they 
provide that service and we’ll get you that information as far as hours of 
operation and days of the week that they provide that service.  And also, 
the number of times that they’re responding to those incidents, because 
they keep those records. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

36 

Sandoval: Thank you. 

Malfabon: Oh, Rick, you have it already.  We’ll provide it in the future, the next 
Board meeting, as an old business item.  We’ll give you those statistics. 

Sandoval: Washoe County, please. 

Larkin Thomason: In Washoe County the Administration Modification No. 2, basically it 
updates some funding for the, again, the Federal Transit Administration 
Section 5316 on their new freedom program and the job access reverse 
commute program.  Administration Modification No. 3, this adds a state of 
good repair grant funding.  It’s for digital radio system.  That’s the RTC 
ride and access programs at $1.147 million. 

 In the Carson City area, we’re adding -- basically we’re buying one bus 
for $220,000 for the Carson.  And in Tahoe MPO, this actually goes back 
to the Nevada Stateline-to-Stateline Bicycle Facility Project, that south 
demonstration phase, and it shows the 517,000 of state gas tax funding.  
That was directly from the project submittal program.  And then also 2.5 
million in public lands, highway discretionary funds. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members with regard to Agenda Item No. 9. 

Martin: I have one question, Governor. 

Sandoval: Please proceed. 

Martin: The 475,000 to F-Street two-lane underpass, we awarded that, or that was 
awarded here a while back.  What’s the $475,000 for? 

Larkin Thomason: I’m sorry I’m pausing.  I’m just trying to pull it out.  Dennis, can you help 
me?  Is Jenica here?  I can have that information to you in a few minutes, 
but I don’t have it off the top of my head. 

Martin: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Member Martin, would you like to hold action on Agenda Item No. 9 if 
we can get that information to you within the next few minutes? 

Martin: That would be fine, sir.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: We’ll hold action on Agenda Item No. 9 and move on to Agenda Item No. 
10, adoption of the 2012 Nevada State Rail Plan. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

37 

Furedy: Governor, Members, Matthew Furedy.  Matthew Furedy from the rail 
planning section.  And we’re pleased to bring the completed rail plan to 
you for the adoption.  The rail plan started back in October of 2010 and it 
was an 18-month process.  The total initial budget for the plan was to be 
approximately $1.5 million including an FRA grant of about $640,000 and 
$500,000 from the FHWA.  And I’m pleased to announce that the project 
came in at approximately $80,000 under budget. 

 These are some laws that were relating to the plan and they include the 
Passenger Rail Investment and Improvement Act of 2008.  And this 
established new federal policy patterned after federal highways programs.  
The rail program mandate includes new requirements to develop state rail 
plans that include three elements; passenger rail, high speed rail and 
freight rail, and also mandated that the states update their rail plan every 
five years. 

 NRS 705 lays out the state requirements for the rail plan.  And NRS 408, 
NDOT should not operate any railroad.  This was brought up due to the 
limiting factor on what solutions the state could take in the plan.  Initial 
project goals for the project were to enhance safety and efficiency of the 
rail transportation system, address social, economic, environmental and 
energy effects and attempt to streamline the process of our organization. 

 Going into the plan we knew we would have some competing projects and 
that NDOT wanted to make it clear that we support all legitimate projects 
until a time that a project becomes a clear choice, either through the 
planning or environmental process, but that the department does not 
specifically endorse the development of any one project over another. 

 The study process included two rounds of technical advisory committee 
meetings that were held both in the north and the south, and two rounds of 
public meetings that were held in Las Vegas, Reno and Elko.  Other 
stakeholder involvement included 32 one-on-one meetings with entities 
including UPR, our BNSF, Western High-Speed Rail Alliance, and our 
partners in the states around us. 

 With the help of the technical advisory committee and public meetings, we 
defined our mission, vision, goals and objectives that the plan would 
follow.  Throughout the 18 months we coordinated with several ongoing 
studies in order to limit the duplication of effort within NDOT and other 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

38 

agencies, which included the I-15 corridor and connecting Nevada and 
some others. 

 Finally, the team came up with a list of projects that would be evaluated 
and prioritized.  This prioritization projects followed a four-step process.  
Obviously it was to identify all projects from stakeholders and the public 
meetings and the TAC.  The second was to evaluate these projects on 
whether they needed further study to define their concept, had 
implementation issues that constrained them from moving ahead, or 
whether it was a -- should be taken up with a private entity directly, such 
as UPR or BNSF.  And the projects that did not move ahead after these 
could be reevaluated the next time we updated the state rail plan. 

The projects that went past that to an advanced evaluation, selection 
factors were created by the department with the assistance of the technical 
advisory committee, including the project’s timeline and estimated costs.  
They were evaluated based on mission, vision, goals and objectives 
developed through the TAC and public meetings, and then identified the 
congressional and/or business approvals that would be needed.  And then 
the fourth step was, recommended the type of support that NDOT should 
provide either through policy support or funding support. 

Types of projects that were identified include, under conventional 
passenger rail, the X-Train, which would run along UPRR lines from 
Southern California to Las Vegas.  The winter games study for the Reno, 
Tahoe bid and obviously that’s been pushed back from the 2022.  And 
under high-speed rail, Desert Express, which is now Express West, the 
Maglev Project, the Western High Speed Rail Alliance, which included 
the Golden Triangle, with connections from Southern California, Phoenix 
and Las Vegas.  And also I’d like to note that Desert Express did receive 
their rod last summer I believe. 

 Excursion Rail, there’s three in Nevada, two with projects; Northern 
Nevada Railway extension in White Pine County and the Virginia & 
Truckee Extension into Carson City.  Freight rail projects include UPRR’s 
future in-state projects including the CTC controls, the sightings and 
crossovers, upgrading UPR Donner Pass in California, upgrading Northern 
Nevada Railroad’s short line and the relocation of the Fallon Transload 
Facility and the shortening of those tracks which was put to us by Fallon. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

39 

 And also we were going to recommend continuing the funding of the rail 
highway grade crossings that NDOT does now.  This is the same list of 
projects, but just put into the schedule of zero to five years, six to twenty 
or more than twenty years.  And lastly I’d like to talk a little bit about the 
challenges we had with the plan or conducting the plan.  Getting good 
technical advisory committee participation due to the great distances in 
Nevada between our population centers, and these were addressed with 
early advanced notice and follow-up.  And we also had teleconferencing 
and video for those who could not attend. 

Another challenge was dealing with competing projects, specifically down 
in Southern Nevada, between Southern Nevada and Southern California.  
The I-15 right-of-way had several projects.  And other projects that were 
brought to our attention late in the game, almost near the completion of 
our plan, but those projects were identified, were possible due to time in 
our plan, or if they couldn’t be, then they were put into the appendices.  
Their information that they gave us was put into the appendices.  And 
that’s all I have.  Any questions? 

Sandoval: Did you actually rank the projects?  You said you were going to do these 
evaluations. 

Furedy: They’re not ranked as in, you know, one, two, three, but they are -- like I 
said, there was two steps -- I mean, two matrices that we came up with.  
One had all the plans and another one had the plans that moved forward 
because they were at a late -- more complete projects that were better 
ready to go and had… 

Sandoval: I guess that’s my point.  There are some projects that are much more 
mature than others, and is that made plain in that report? 

Furedy: It is discussed, yes.  Absolutely. 

Sandoval: Questions from other Board members?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  So where exactly does the revenue come from to 
fund a rail plan? 

Furedy: Well, like I said in the beginning, 640,000 came from a high-speed 
passenger rail grant from the FRA, from the Federal Railroad 
Administration, 500,000 came from FHWA, which funded the freight 
portion of the plan, and the rest was state money. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

40 

Fransway: Okay.  You said that you’re $80,000 in the black? 

Furedy: Yeah. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you. 

Furedy: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Questions from Southern Nevada? 

Martin: None. 

Malfabon: Governor, I wanted to mention, as Matt had mentioned that there are 
several projects that are competing with each other along this quarter, 
particularly in Southern Nevada.  We talked with the Pullman Palace Car 
Company who is also looking at Vegas to Southern California as an 
alternative.  And they brought to our attention that one of the other 
competitors was saying that the State of Nevada and NDOT endorsed their 
project which was competing with them. 

 And we wanted to add just a statement to the -- as a policy, NDOT does 
not endorse a particular project over another.  We do support the 
transportation opportunities whether it moves on highways, runways, 
sidewalks or railroads, and we’ll work with all partners on opportunities 
within the state, but the department does not specifically endorse one 
project over another.  So that’s the statement that we will add to the draft 
with your approval so that it doesn’t give the perception of endorsing one 
competing project over another. 

Sandoval: Agreed.  And I don’t think we should be in the business of doing that.  I 
guess part of my question is, as I said, we have some projects that are 
more mature than others.  Do we slow down others -- or slow down the 
ones that are more mature by some coming, as you described, being late in 
the game and putting that within the -- having a reference in the rail plan 
to that? 

Furedy: What I meant by late in the game is we were nearing the completion of our 
plan and some project -- a specific project came to us and actually told us 
they were trying to stay under the radar and so -- but that they were going 
to go ahead and give us the information.  And so we did.  We were able to 
add that to the plan, but it may not have been as in-depth as it could have 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

41 

been if we had gotten that information earlier.  But it doesn’t necessarily 
mean that the project wasn’t a good project or… 

Sandoval: Yeah, and I’m not going there.  I guess we have limited staff and resources 
and these are really big issues, big question issues.  And at some point 
where do we make a decision that one is more mature than the other, one 
is more realistic than the other? 

Furedy: I’d actually like to defer that to Tracy.  That’s kind of more above my pay 
grade, so Tracy. 

Larkin Thomason: What is unique about a lot of the rail projects is most of these negotiations 
go on without participation from NDOT.  We don’t operate the rails.  
Normally the UPPR and so on, they’re -- sorry, UPRR, and they go into 
negotiations with them so there was an X project, there was a Y project, 
there is several other projects.  Their negotiations with UP, they negotiate 
with them.  Does it work for them?  Can they do this?  There’s a lot of 
negotiations going on with the X project now, I believe, like over 
Daggett’s Pass and so on.  Those really are completely independent of 
anything from NDOT.  And most of them are -- they don’t want the 
information out earlier, so sometimes we’re not aware of how far they are 
in the maturity.  Am I going around the question? 

Sandoval: No, I understand.  I guess, I’m trying to boil this down so that -- we have 
one bit of right-of-way and… 

Larkin Thomason: Correct. 

Sandoval: …there are folks that are all competing for that one bid. 

Larkin Thomason: It’s almost like any permit and so on.  It’s almost like first come, first 
serve.  When it comes in, if you’re ready to advance and move on, we will 
be working with you first, and then everything subsequent that is 
measured on how that affects our facilities and the facilities already in the 
right-of-way. 

Malfabon: And a lot of the project proponents have to follow the process that’s 
specific to their funding source.  So if they’re going to get -- such as 
Express West, formerly Desert Express, if they’re going to get a federal 
loan, they have to comply with the NEPA, the environmental 
requirements, and they did get their approval of that versus another, 
maybe a competing, such as the Maglev that hasn’t advanced far enough. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

42 

 So it really is whoever’s done their work, has their ducks in a row and 
comes to NDOT with everything ready, then we start working with them 
on if they want to use the right-of-way.  Some of the other projects are just 
using the UPRR tracks and negotiating directly with them and trying to get 
private financing, so they’re more independent and don’t have as much 
coordination with NDOT. 

Sandoval: Any further questions from Board members on this Agenda item? 

Martin: None down here, sir. 

Sandoval: Then the Chair will accept a motion for the adoption of the 2012 Nevada 
State Rail Plan. 

Malfabon: Governor, could you mention the issue about the with no specific 
endorsement? 

Sandoval: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Director.  And we would add to the 2012 Nevada 
State Rail Plan that the State of Nevada does not endorse any specific 
project.  Does that satisfy you, Mr. Director? 

Malfabon: Yes.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Is there a motion? 

Fransway: Mr. Chairman, Governor, I would move to adopt the rail plan as submitted 
and note that State of Nevada has no particular endorsement. 

Sandoval: Endorsement of a particular project. 

Fransway: Yes. 

Sandoval: We have a motion by Member Fransway.  Is there a second? 

Wallin: Second 

Sandoval: Second by Madam Controller.  Any questions or discussion on the 
motion?  Hearing none, all in favor of the motion, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no.  Motion passes unanimously.  We’ll move back to Agenda 
Item No. 9.  Do we have that information that was sought in prior 
discussion? 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

43 

Larkin Thomason: The additional funding was added for some additional bridge work that 
was being done underneath the I-15 area.  Is that satisfactory to you? 

Malfabon: Member Martin, it was for the F-Street Bridge.  When the City of Las 
Vegas was identified in the NRS as far as it adjusted the funding of that F-
Street project, they identified the funding source when it was apparent that 
that funding source would not contribute enough funds for the project.  
The City of Las Vegas came back to NDOT and we actually went to the 
interim finance committee to report that we needed some federal funds put 
towards this project, and that’s what the additional money is going to, for 
construction of the F-Street Bridge. 

Martin: Thank you, sir.  I appreciate it. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much.  Does that satisfy you, Member Martin? 

Martin: Yes, sir.  With that, I move for approval of Agenda Item No. 9. 

Cortez Masto: I’ll second the motion. 

Sandoval: Member Martin has made a motion to approve the administrative 
modifications to the 2012/2015 STIP, second by Madam Attorney 
General.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  Hearing none, all in 
favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed, no.  Motion passes unanimously.  Agenda Item No. 11, 
presentation of wind warning system for U.S. 395 and I-580 in Washoe 
and Pleasant Valleys.  A lot of interest in this Agenda item. 

Nelson: Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  My name’s Rick 
Nelson.  I’m the Assistant Director of Operations.  I have a very brief 
presentation to make and will certainly entertain all the questions that you 
might have.  The wind blows in Washoe Valley, absolutely it does.  The 
department has had a wind warning system of some kind for the motorist 
through Washoe Valley for probably over 30 years. 

 When I went up to the district in 1989, it was a very old system, had 
distinguishable message signs.  It was basically a bulb behind a silk-
screened message with an anemometer at the fire station in the center of 
Washoe Valley, and it was simply a toggle on and off switch.  In the early 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

44 

1990s, we upgraded that system, quite frankly, because we couldn’t buy 
the bulbs for the sign anymore. 

 They were only available in France and they had a very strange voltage 
and so on.  And so as part of our road weather information system project, 
a project where we deployed remote weather stations throughout the state, 
we installed one of those weather stations in Washoe Valley and put in 
some dynamic message signs. 

 And those signs were in place until the I-580 project came through.  And 
one of the things that generated some concern with respect to the wind 
speed in Washoe Valley was the fact that the anemometer wasn’t placed in 
the same location as it was before.  Instead of being at the fire station, it 
was moved a little farther to the north.  And as you recall, a golf course 
was built in Washoe Valley and the owner of that business expressed some 
concern because, of course, when you have a great big dynamic message 
sign saying the wind is blowing, it kind of takes the edge off people 
wanting to go play golf. 

 So what we did was we commissioned the first study to look at the wind 
speeds in Washoe Valley.  And what we did was we did an analysis 
between the winds at the fire station and the winds at the new RWIS site 
and found that there was very tight correlation between those two 
locations.  The wind speed was not that variable between those two places 
and we continued on. 

 When we established the new system, there was some concern about the 
wind threshold trigger values.  In other words, the wind speed that triggers 
the warning or the prohibitive message.  Because when we built the new 
station, we simply migrated the old criteria over to the new.  So we 
commissioned UNR, that was the Department of Mechanical Engineering, 
to do a study on vehicle stability to try to zero in on what wind speed 
should we have an alert for to begin warning motorists of high winds and 
at what speed should we prohibit motorists. 

 And what they came back with, and it was a very simple analysis, but it 
did have some very interesting results.  One of the first things that came 
up was different vehicle configurations have deferring susceptibility to 
instability with respect to the wind speeds.  And so we can’t create a 
warning for every specific vehicle that goes through, so at that point there 
was the initial steps to identify what the design vehicle might be.  And 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

45 

through that analysis, the critical vehicle, of course, is a semi, a 40-foot 
long semi that is unloaded.  And so that sort of became the standard, if you 
will, for establishing those wind speed thresholds. 

Now it was a fairly complicated set of rules for establishing the wind 
warnings and what we had had was the two messages based on a sustained 
wind speed over a ten-minute period and wind gust, a gust over that ten 
minute period.  So the not advised message would go up when the 
sustained winds were between 15 and 29 miles an hour, or if the wind was 
gusting between 29 and 39.  So you would get a not advised message if the 
winds were steady between 15 and 29, or there was a gust of 40. 

 Now, the prohibited message would go up if the sustained winds were -- 
you know, I’ve practiced this so many times it’s very confusing.  
Prohibited message would go up if sustained winds were greater than 30 
or gusting over 40, so that’s when the prohibited message would come 
about. 

So what we did was we hired a firm and several subcontractors to do 
another study of the wind speed threshold values; one, because there was 
some concern from the trucking industry about the amount of time we had 
prohibited high profile vehicles through Washoe Valley.  Plus, we’re 
adding a new link, the I-580 link, and the concern associated with the 
winds over the Galena Creek Bridge.  This is the recommended wind 
thresholds for the new system, which includes the link between Mount 
Rose and Bowers Mansion, in addition to an evaluation of the wind speeds 
along State Route 429, Bowers Mansion. 

So what we’ve done is we’ve expanded our operational area, if you will, 
from just Washoe Valley to include the new link of I-580 and Bowers 
Mansion Road.  We felt this was fairly important because historically 
when the winds have prohibited high profile vehicles through Washoe 
Valley, the trucks tend to use Bowers Mansion as an alternative then, and 
we sort of on purpose did not make any statements with respect to the 
susceptibility of high profile vehicles on Bowers Mansion.  And when you 
get to the very southern end where that piece of 429 parallels 395, we had 
experienced some vehicles that had tipped over in that region. 

 So the new proposed wind speed thresholds go now from, instead of 
factoring in gusts and steady wind speeds and so on, we’ve shortened our 
sampling frequency to a minute and we’re looking at wind speeds between 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

46 

20 and 40 miles an hour giving an alert message.  We’re not calling it a 
warning anymore because the National Weather Service has a specific 
definition of what a warning means and it was causing some confusion 
between when the National Weather Service issues a wind warning, which 
is a more generic message, to our alerts for the specific pieces of highway.  
So the alert message has gone up to between 20 and 40 and it will be 
prohibited over 40. 

And the same through Washoe Valley.  And I apologize, there is a typo on 
this slide.  There’s an inconsistency between the prohibited over 40 miles 
an hour on this slide, and the Attachment A in your book.  It is in fact 35 
miles an hour.  And that becomes important with respect to the speeds.  
The speed limit through Washoe Valley is 70 miles an hour.  And the 
analysis that was performed takes into account vehicle dynamics 
associated with the speed of the vehicle.  So the prohibited message will 
go up when the wind speeds are over 35.  But what this does do is it 
improves the availability, if you will, of passage through Washoe Valley, 
because remember before the steady wind speeds between 15 and 29 
would generate a prohibited message, so this actually gives us a bit more 
opportunity to go through Washoe Valley. 

 Now, in Bowers Mansion, because the vehicle speed is important, what we 
are going to do is issue a variable speed limit, so when the winds are over 
35 miles an hour, we’re going to drop the speed limit on State Route 429 
to 45 and that’ll allow the high profile vehicles to pass with wind speeds 
up to 40 miles an hour.  So what we’re doing is we’re taking into account 
the vehicle speed with respect to these wind speed threshold values. 

 Let’s see.  The other thing that the study did recommend was improving 
our traveler information package, so as a result of this we’re going to 
install some additional ITS devices, some additional weather stations, so 
we can get a better profile of the winds; also, highway advisory radios and 
dynamic message signs so we can improve getting that message out to the 
motorists. 

 Now, as we went through the process of this study, we also reached out to 
two stakeholder groups.  The first group was the West Washoe Valley 
CAB.  They’re the citizens on the west side of Washoe Valley that have 
some impact when the prohibited message goes up through Washoe 
Valley because that’s the primary bypass route, if you will, for trucks.  



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

47 

They had a fair amount of concerns.  And we also reached out to the 
trucking industry and we had two rounds of meetings with both of those 
stakeholder groups; one to get their input as the study was commencing, 
and secondly to present the results to them and get some feedback from 
them, which was positive in both cases. 

 These new threshold values have, in fact, been implemented with the 
opening of the I-580 link.  And while there’s some differences in 
configuration at Bowers Mansion -- because the fact that that interchange 
isn’t finished yet, you know, as you drive through there you’ll see that that 
ramp is open for high profile vehicles during wind events.  That will all be 
cleaned up when the freeway project is finished.  So with that, I will be 
happy to answer any questions that you all might have with respect to 
winds. 

Sandoval: First I want to compliment you on the whole project.  I’ve traveled the 
road several times, heard nothing but great things.  People are very, very 
pleased with it.  So I think it’s been a great addition to the infrastructure in 
Northern Nevada.  It’s just a really nice project.  Now, when you say 
prohibited, that’s just the big trucks, correct?  Not prohibited to all traffic? 

Nelson: That is correct.  That’s high profile vehicles.  You notice there’s some 
additional definition on the warning signs that talks about high profile 
vehicles over nine feet.  And, again, the control vehicle is an empty 
vehicle.  We’ve had very good cooperation with the highway patrol 
enforcing that prohibited message with respect to trucks that tend to 
violate the sign. 

Sandoval: And I get asked this question a lot, so I can answer definitively, is there a 
difference between the warning in the rules for Washoe Valley and I-580?  
So, in other words, the same wind rules apply as you go through Washoe 
Valley as when you’re traveling up on I-580? 

Nelson: That is correct.  Well, Denise might be kicking me behind the podium, but 
-- oh, that’s right.  I apologize.  The difference is -- again, I apologize for 
the error in my slide.  Washoe Valley will be prohibited when the winds 
are over 35 miles an hour because the vehicle speed is 70 miles an hour.  
On the new I-580 link, they’ll be prohibited when the winds are over 40 
miles an hour because the speeds are at 65.  Now, you’ll also… 

Sandoval: More than likely it will be open more then up there. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

48 

Nelson: Likely.  Yes. 

Sandoval: And I guess the point I’m making is, this information’s important so that I 
can answer because there’s somewhat of a perception out there that that 
road’s going to be closed -- I-580’s going to be closed all the time, and 
that’s not the case. 

Nelson: I believe that to be not the case.  Only time will tell, but as the 
construction project has gone on over all these years, we’ve had a 
temporary weather station set up there.  Initially, of course, all the big 
cranes have anemometers on the cranes and so we were sort of watching 
the winds there.  But towards the end we actually put a weather station, a 
temporary weather station there and interestingly enough the winds in the 
Galena Creek Bridge area tend to be less than the winds reported in 
Washoe Valley. 

Sandoval: That’s a good fact to know.  And this study doesn’t include weather events 
though?  Other weather events, I should say, like snow? 

Nelson: The analysis of the vehicle dynamics during high wind events did take a 
look at when the road was wet versus when the road is dry.  One of the 
bases of their analysis had to do with sliding friction.  And of course 
during, you know, snow and wet events that friction value goes down.  
What’s difficult to try to incorporate those values into an operational 
system is we’re measuring whether the road’s wet or dry based on an area 
about this big over all these miles of road.  And there’s been a lot of 
spirited discussion about where you measure that two-square inch patch.  
Is it in the wheel path or on the edge or the center?  It can give you widely 
varying results, so we chose to go with the more conservative values, the 
wet values, in establishing these thresholds. 

Sandoval: Because that’s the other question I get is once you’re up there, you’re up 
there.  And between there and the Melrose Highway, and so what are the 
criteria going to be for the closure of that road, because, again, if you’ve 
got a severe weather event and someone’s going to have to make that call, 
because, as I say, it’s not like you can pull over or get off or anything like 
that. 

Nelson: One of the things that came up in the writing of this report has to do with 
forecasted winds in effect.  There was a recommendation that talked about 
trying to incorporate forecasted high wind events into this.  And the 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

49 

department does have a third party meteorologist working for us.  If you 
haven’t seen the agreement for them, you will at some point in time 
because that’s a service that we do put out to bid to give us specialized 
weather forecasts. 

 And the intent is to incorporate those forecasted events into a predictive 
model, but right now this is automatically controlled.  When the wind 
speeds reach that trigger velocity, the messages go out, the signs come on.  
They stay on for a period of time.  I think it’s 20 or 30 minutes.  So even 
though you’re measuring that wind speed over a very short period of time, 
once it triggers, that message will stay on to provide some stability for the 
motorists. 

Sandoval: Where will that message sign be going northbound, so that you can make 
your decision whether you’re going to go up on 580 or not? 

Nelson: Well, there will actually be two decision points; one actually in Carson 
City before you get to that Washoe Valley segment, and then there’ll be 
another segment with enough warning so that if you need to get off at the 
Bowers Interchange, you’ll be able to do that. 

Sandoval: Okay.  I have no further questions.  Other Board members?  Member 
Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Am I right, did I hear you say that you’re trying to 
make this system work both with audio and visual aids?  In other words, 
when this thing triggers, can it also trigger the 511 road condition that lets 
people know ahead of time, so that they don’t get on the road and rely 
upon a visual warning system only? 

Nelson: Yes, Member Fransway.  It’s a total package.  The traveler information 
package is a total package.  So when that event triggers, not only do the 
signs come on for the motorists that are there, it also populates that 
message to 511, highway advisory radios.  In fact, the media’s been very 
good at picking it up and rebroadcasting it through the media outlets as 
well. 

Fransway: That’s excellent, yeah.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Other Board member questions?  Any questions from Southern Nevada? 

Martin: No, sir. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

50 

Sandoval: I guess one last question, given all these modes of communication, will 
there be some kind of an app so that you might get a text message or 
something if you subscribe to that type of service? 

Nelson: Yes.  And the reason I hesitate a little bit is because, as you recall, the 
Board just approved the agreement for our new 511 system, and I think 
there will be lots of enhancements associated with the new 511. 

Sandoval: And the genesis of my question is a purely selfish motive, but I’m going to 
have two kids and a wife that are traveling that road every day and my 
kids, they won’t be talking on the cell phone, I assure you, but before they 
leave, if they got a text message that let them know what the conditions 
were, that would be I think really helpful.  And I think my kids are pretty 
representative of a lot of that generation and others that are relying on 
these iPhones for information. 

Nelson: In fact, they can sign up for that right now, and we’ll get you the 
particulars on how to make that happen. 

Sandoval: Great.  Thank you.  Any further questions with regard to Agenda Item No. 
11?  Hearing none, Agenda Item No. 12, old business. 

Malfabon: Agenda Item No. 12 is to summarize the outside counsel costs on open 
matters.  As you can see, there are several legal firms that provide 
assistance to NDOT.  Typically, we’ll try to do as much as we can in-
house using the Attorney General’s deputies.  In some cases you’ve seen 
the support that we receive from these outside counsels.  There is 
(inaudible) provided assistance on the I-580 project to deal with some 
claim issues that we’ve settled.  I believe that there are no other 
outstanding issues that we’re aware of.  Oh, yes, there was kind of a 
second tier issue with a subcontractor that we will have to deal with. 

 But the next one was -- the Pioneer Program was for the public/private 
partnerships and looking at tolling opportunities should we have that 
authority granted by the legislature, so we had legal assistance from 
Nasumen (sp?) through that effort.  And we have a balance that, if we 
need to, during the legislative process, we did submit a BDR for P3s and if 
we need to we still have a small balance available to provide that 
assistance. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

51 

 The Chapman Law Firm assisted us on Project Neon with the acquisition 
of some parcels there where we had to deal with inverse condemnation or 
actions that the opposing counsel was saying that we started our project 
earlier than we -- we have a certain process in acquiring property.  They 
were saying that we affected them much earlier in the ballgame, so we had 
Chapman Law Firm help us out. 

 The Wall Street case was brought to you previously and approved by the 
Board of Examiners as a settlement.  Ad America is going on right now.  
Chapman Law Firm also helped us out on the Blue Diamond RV case on 
the second page.  That’s the one that I had mentioned that we saved 
several millions of dollars that the other folks were saying that we owed 
them millions of dollars, and we had a decision in court that put that to rest 
for hundreds of thousands of dollars. 

 I mentioned the Clark County assistance on paving their local roads to 
provide access to that property, as well as the (inaudible) parcel.  They’re 
currently helping us out on Vegas Group LLC, which is associated with 
Project Neon.  We recently negotiated a settlement last week, so we intend 
to take that settlement to the Board of Examiners for approval.  It was 
along the lines of what we had had a recent appraisal for the parcel plus 
some additional costs that we feel is a good settlement for the State of 
Nevada.  They’re also involved in another case on Project Neon that’s 
mentioned there.  It’s ongoing still. 

The other firms, Snell and Wilmer, are helping us on the P-construction 
cases up in Wells with the wildlife crossing and Contract 3377 here in 
Northern Nevada.  Snell and Wilmer’s also helping us on a Southern 
Nevada project involving Williams Brother Incorporated.  And finally we 
have BH Consulting which is helping us on the radios and the 
communication issues with rebanding, rechanneling of NDOT’s 800 
megahertz frequency radio system. 

Sandoval: Did the matter -- the one that I, as you know, have been paying particular 
close attention to is where we paid $6 million in fees to a particular firm.  
Is that this first item on this attachment (inaudible)? 

Malfabon: That was a separate -- that was for the Ames case, so that was a separate 
case and that’s all settled. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

52 

Sandoval: I guess where I’m going is we approved $1 million not long ago in 
additional funds, and because we resolved the case sooner, that was $1 
million to get us through trial, but we settled the case.  I was curious how 
much we retained of that $1 million that had been approved? 

Malfabon: I don’t know.  Rick, do you know?  We didn’t have to go to court.  We 
could bring that forward to you as old business item to report how much 
we saved by not going to court on that. 

Sandoval: Any further questions from Board members with regard to Agenda Item 
No. 12? 

Martin: None here, sir. 

Sandoval: Move on to Agenda Item No. 13, public comments.  Is there any member 
of the public in Southern Nevada that would like to provide comment to 
the Board? 

Martin: None here, sir. 

Sandoval: Is there any member of the public here in Carson City that would like to 
provide comment to the Board?  I’ll close the public comment.  There is 
not an adjournment item on the Agenda.  I’ll take a motion to adjourn 
anyway.  Is there a motion to -- this was going to be a meeting that never 
ended. 

Savage: Governor, I’ll make a motion to adjourn. 

Sandoval: There’s a motion to adjourn by Member Savage.  Is there a second? 

Fransway: Second. 

Wallin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Fransway.  Any questions?  Hearing none, all in favor, 
please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

September 10, 2012 
 

53 

Sandoval: Motion passes unanimously.  Thank you, members of the Board.  Thank 
you, ladies and gentlemen.  This meeting is adjourned. 

 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Secretary to the Board     Preparer of Minutes 

 



 
MEMORANDUM 

                             October 1, 2012 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      October 8, 2012 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 6:  Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 -  For Possible Action 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to provide the Board a list of agreements over $300,000 for 
discussion and approval following the process approved at the July 11, 2011 Transportation 
Board meeting.  This list consists of any design build contracts and all agreements (and 
amendments) for non-construction matters, such as consultants, service providers, etc. that 
obligate total funds of over $300,000, during the period from August 20, 2012 to September 14, 
2012. 
 
Background: 
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the development, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. The attached agreements 
constitute all new agreements, new task orders on existing agreements, and all amendments 
which take the total agreement above $300,000 during the period from August 20, 2012 to 
September 14, 2012. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These agreements have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures. They represent the necessary support services needed to 
deliver the State of Nevada’s multi-modal transportation system.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Agreements over $300,000, August 20, 

2012 to September 14, 2012. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of all agreements listed on Attachment A. 
 
Prepared by:  Scott K. Sisco, Assistant Director - Administration 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Agreements for Approval over $300,000 
                           Page 1



Attachment A

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend 
Date

Agree 
Type

Note

1 10412 00 00 TRANSCORE 
ITS LLC

ITS FIELD EQUIP 
SUPPORT

N  $   500,000.00  $             -    $         500,000.00  $           -   11-Oct-12 31-Dec-14 NULL Service 
Provider

TECHNICAL AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT 
INCLUDING UPDATES AND ENHANCEMENTS, 
MAINTENANCE AND PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE, 
REPAIR AND LIFE CYCLE MAINTENANCE ON 
ELECTRICAL AND INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEMS (ITS) FIELD DEVICES, INCLUDING BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION 
(CCTV) CAMERAS, DYNAMIC  MESSAGE SIGNS 
(DMS), HIGHWAY ADVISORY RADIO (HAR), 
FLASHING BEACONS, ROADWAY WEATHER 
INFORMATION SYSTEM (RWIS), RAMP METERS, HUB 
BUILDINGS AND ANY  ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT 
USED TO SUPPORT THE OPERATION OF 
INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS. 
STATEWIDE                                                                                                                          
PROPOSALS FOR RFA 104-12-016 WAS SUBMITTED 
BY TRANSCORE ITS LLC                                                                                               
NV B/L#: NV20051693548

2 32512 00 00 CHAPMAN 
LAW FIRM

NDOT VS 
GENDALL PROJ 
NEON

N  $   416,800.00  $             -    $         416,800.00  $           -   21-Aug-12 21-Aug-14 NULL Service REPRESENTATION BY MICHAEL G. CHAPMAN, 
ATTORNEY AT LAW, P.C. IN TH MATTER OF NDOT 
VS ALEXANDER AND LILY GENDALL, PROJECT 
NEON, STATEWIDE.                                                                                   
NV B/L#: NV20011462722

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Agreements for Approval

August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

Agreements for Approval over $300,000 
                           Page 2



Agreements for Approval over $300,000 
                           Page 3



Agreements for Approval over $300,000 
                           Page 4



Agreements for Approval over $300,000 
                           Page 5



Agreements for Approval over $300,000 
                           Page 6



Agreements for Approval over $300,000 
                           Page 7



Agreements for Approval over $300,000 
                           Page 8



Attorney Paralegal

1 75 25

2 50 10

3 325 150

4 150 25

5 75 10

6 350 120

7 325 75

8 150 25

1500 440

$375,000 $41,800 

Direct Action

RATES:
Attorney - $250/ hr
Paralegal - $95/ hr

TOTAL $

Trial

COMBINED TOTAL $ $416,800 

Post Trial - preparing and arguing post trial motions 

* This is an estimate only and is subject to change as the case develops.  The estimate does not 

include costs or expert witness fees.  No estimate is given for appeal related work at this time. 

That estimate will be supplied later.

TOTAL HOURS

NDOT v. GENDALL (Charleston Antique Mall) 
CHAPMAN LAW FIRM P.C.

PROPOSED BUDGET*

Dispositive Motion Practice - motions in limine, motions 
for summary judgment, etc.

Settlement - informal discussions, preparing settlement 
statement, attending settlement conference, preparing 
settlement documents

Initial Fact Finding/Meetings - initial meeting(s) with client 
regarding case, project, documents, etc., and case related 
research

Initial Pleadings/ Initial Motion Practice - drafting 
Complaint, Summonses, Answer to Counterclaim, Lis 
Pendens, Ex Parte Motion for Publication, Motion to 
Dismiss, etc.

Pretrial - jury instructions, preparing trial memorandum, 
trial exhibits, pre-trial conference, examination and 
argument preparation

Discovery - document gathering and review, answering 
written discovery, discovery related motion practice, expert 
identification and retention taking and defending 
depositions, etc.

Agreements for Approval over $300,000 
                           Page 9



 
MEMORANDUM 

          October 1, 2012   
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      October 8, 2012 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 7:  Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational Item Only 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to inform the Board of the following: 

• Construction contracts under $5,000,000 awarded August 20, 2012 to September 14, 
2012 

• Agreements under $300,000 executed August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012 
• Settlements entered into by the Department which were presented for approval to the 

Board of Examiners August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012 
 
Any emergency agreements authorized by statute will be presented here as an informational 
item. 

 
Background: 
 
Pursuant to NRS 408.131(5), the Transportation Board has authority to “[e]xecute or approve all 
instruments and documents in the name of the State or Department necessary to carry out the 
provisions of the chapter”. Additionally, the Director may execute all contracts necessary to 
carry out the provisions of Chapter 408 of NRS with the approval of the board, except those 
construction contracts that must be executed by the chairman of the board.  Other contracts or 
agreements not related to the construction, reconstruction, improvement and maintenance of 
highways must be presented to and approved by the Board of Examiners.  This item is intended 
to inform the Board of various matters relating to the Department of Transportation but which do 
not require any formal action by the Board.  
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance 
of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per 
statute and executed by the Governor in his capacity as Board Chairman. The projects are part 
of the STIP document approved by the Board.  In addition, the Department negotiates 
settlements with contractors, property owners, and other parties to resolve disputes. These 
proposed settlements are presented to the Board of Examiners, with the support and 
advisement of the Attorney General’s Office, for approval.  Other matters included in this item 
would be any emergency agreements entered into by the Department during the reporting 
period. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 1



The attached construction contracts, settlements and agreements constitute all that were 
awarded for construction from August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012 and agreements 
executed by the Department from August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012. 
 
There was one settlement during the reporting period which was approved at the September 11, 
2012 Board of Examiners meeting.  
 
Analysis: 
 
These contracts have been executed following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Awarded - Under $5,000,000, 

August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012 
 

B) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Executed Agreements – Under $300,000, 
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012 
 

C) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Emergency Agreements Executed – 
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012 
 
 

D) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Settlement approved at September 11, 
2012 Board of Examiners meeting 

 
Recommendation for Board Action:   Informational item only 
 
Prepared by: Scott K. Sisco, Assistant Director - Administration 
 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 2



Attachment  

A 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 3



 
STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTS AWARDED – UNDER $5,000,000 
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012 

 
 
  
There were no contracts under $5,000,000 awarded during the reporting period. 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 4



Attachment  

B 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 5



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

1 22112 00 00 CML-NV 
SANDPOINTE LLC

APN: 161-07-603-003 N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $                 -   5-Jun-12 31-Dec-15 NULL Coop INSTALL APPROXIMATELY 
860 LINEAR FEET OF WALL, 
ALONG THE NORTHBOUND 
EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
OF IR 515 FROM BOULDER 
HWY NORTH, CLARK 
COUNTY.                                
NV B/L#: NV20111292665

2 16812 00 01 DOUGLAS AREA 
RURAL TRANSIT

FTA ARRA GRANT 
NV-86-X001

Y  $     575,000.00  $               -    $        575,000.00  $                 -   15-May-12 31-Jan-13 23-Aug-12 Grantee AMD 1: EXTEND 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 
09/30/12 TO 01/31/13.FTA 
ARRA GRANT NV-86-X001, 
PURCHASE, CONSTRUCT, 
AND INSTALL A 
COMMUNICATION SYSTEM 
FOR THE DOUGLAS AREA 
RURAL TRANSIT SYSTEM, 
DOUGLAS COUNTY.                                                     
NV B/L #: EXEMPT.

3 34012 00 00 CITY OF BOULDER 
CITY

EXTENSION OF P450-
09-802 FTA

Y  $     120,553.00  $               -    $        120,553.00  $                 -   30-Jun-12 30-Sep-12 NULL Grantee TO ALLOW GRANTEE TO 
EXPEND FUNDS FROM 
AGREEMENT P450-09-802 
WHICH EXPIRED ON 6/29/12. 
FTA ARRA GRANT NV-86-
X001, CONSTRUCT BUS 
SHELTERS IN BOULDER CITY, 
CLARK COUNTY.                                                                     
NV B/L# : EXEMPT

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 6



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

4 24910 00 01 OTIS ELEVATOR 
COMPANY

MAINTAIN 2 
ELEVATORS TMC

N  $       14,504.00  $     9,504.00  $          24,008.00  $                 -   31-Aug-10 31-Aug-14 24-Aug-12 Independent 
Contractor

AMD 1: EXTENDING THE 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 
8/31/12 TO 8/31/14 TO 
EXTEND SERVICES. 
INCREASING AUTHORITY BY 
$9,504.00 TO BRING 
AGREEMENT TOTAL TO 
$24,008.00.PROVIDE REMOTE 
ELEVATOR MONITORING 
SYSTEM, MONTHLY USAGE 
AND PERFORMANCE 
REPORTS, AND FULL 
SERVICE MAINTENANCE AND 
REPAIR SERVICES FOR 2 
ELEVATORS AT TMC IN 
CLARK COUNTY                                                                              
NV B/L#: 19441000038

5 34309 53 00 HAS IMAGES, INC. SCAN FILM 4 LPN 
GLEN/WINN/R-W

N  $            750.00  $               -    $               750.00  $                 -   28-Aug-12 15-Oct-12 NULL Independent 
Contractor

SCAN FILM FOR LPN 1129 
GLENDALE; LPN 1260 
WINNEMUCCA; LPN 1261 
RAMSEY-WEEKS, WASHOE, 
HUMBOLDT AND LYON 
COUNTIES.                                                             
NV B/L #: NV20111322690

6 34309 54 00 HAS IMAGES INC. HAS IMAGES INC N  $         1,100.00  $               -    $            1,100.00  $                 -   13-Sep-12 19-Oct-12 NULL Independent 
Contractor

SCAN FILM FOR LPN 1236 I-80 
GOLDCONDA. HUMBOLDT 
COUNTY.                                                                
NV B/L #: 20111322690

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 7



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

7 34609 10 00 KEYSTONE 
AERIAL SURVEYS

AERIAL 
PHOTO/GLEN/WINNE
/R-W

N  $         7,060.00  $               -    $            7,060.00  $                 -   29-Aug-12 1-Oct-12 NULL Independent 
Contractor

AERIAL PHOTO FLIGHTS: LPN 
1129 GLENDALE; LPN 1260 
WINNEMUCCA; LPN 1261  
RAMSEY-WEEKS, WASHOE, 
HUMBOLDT AND LYON 
COUNTIES.                                                      
NV B/L #: NV20111313643

8 34609 11 00 KEYSTONE 
AERIAL SURVEYS

AERIAL PHTO 
FLIGHT 1236 
GOLCON

N  $         7,700.00  $               -    $            7,700.00  $                 -   7-Sep-12 5-Oct-12 NULL Independent 
Contractor

AERIAL PHOTO FLIGHT: LPN 
1236 I-80 GOLCONDA. 
HUMBOLDT COUNTY.                            
NV B/L #: NV20111313643

9 20312 00 01 UNIVERSITY OF 
NEVADA LAS 
VEGAS

SAFETY ANALYST 
APPLICATION

Y  $     249,258.00  $               -    $        249,258.00  $                 -   30-May-12 30-Jun-14 4-Sep-12 Interlocal AMD 1: TO CHANGE BILLING 
FROM UPON COMPLETION 
TO QUARTERLY.TO COLLECT 
AND ANALYZE SAFETY DATA 
IN ORDER TO IMPLEMENT 
THE "SAFETY ANALYST" 
APPLICATION, CLARK 
COUNTY.                                                
NV B/L #: EXEMPT.

10 27912 00 00 TAHOE 
TRANSPORTATION 
DISTRICT

DEFINE 
RESPONSIBILITIES

N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $                 -   14-Sep-12 31-Dec-13 NULL Interlocal INTERLOCAL BETWEEN 
NDOT, TTD, AND DOUGLAS 
COUNTY TO DEFINE 
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE 
STATELINE TO STATELINE 
BIKEWAY PROJECT PHASE1C 
IN DOUGLAS COUNTY.                    
TTD NV B/L: #NV20101738296                                    
DOUGLAS COUNTY                      
NV B/L: #EXEMPT

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 8



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

11 29212 00 00 CITY OF LAS 
VEGAS

REIMBURSEMENT 
FROM LAWSUIT

N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $2,000,000.00 2-Aug-12 30-Sep-12 NULL Interlocal PROVIDE FOR THE CITY'S 
REIMBURSEMENT TO THE 
DEPARTMENT FOR CASE NO. 
A-09-590346-C, INVERSE 
CONDEMNATION LAWSUIT IN 
CLARK COUNTY.                                               
NV B/L #: EXEMPT

12 32712 00 00 UNLV ANALYZE 
GEOTEXTILE IN NV

Y  $     141,253.00  $               -    $        141,253.00  $                 -   1-Oct-12 28-Feb-14 NULL Interlocal TO ANALYZE THE 
EFFECTIVENESS OF 
GEOTEXTILE IN 
STRENGTHENING AND 
REDUCING ROADWAY 
STRUCTURAL SECTIONS IN 
NEVADA, STATEWIDE.                                                  
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

13 33412 00 00 UNR BENEFIT COST 
STUDIES

N  $     138,000.00  $               -    $        138,000.00  $                 -   25-Jul-12 30-Jun-13 NULL Interlocal TO CONDUCT BENEFIT COST 
STUDIES ON HIGHWAY 
PROJECTS AS REQUIRED 
PER 2007 NEVADA 
LEGISLATIVE BILL AB595, 
WASHOE COUNTY.                                             
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

14 33912 00 00 UNLV ENHANCE TRAFFIC 
SAFETY PROG

N  $     108,769.00  $               -    $        108,769.00  $                 -   30-Aug-12 31-Jul-13 NULL Interlocal TO ENHANCE THE NDOT'S 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 
PROGRAMS, STATEWIDE.                                            
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

15 32812 00 00 JOSH 
CHRISTENSEN

BIG SMOKY 3 N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       2,400.00 24-Aug-12 31-Jul-16 NULL Lease MAINTENANCE STATION 
LEASE - BIG SMOKY 3 TO 
NDOT EMPLOYEE IN NYE 
COUNTY.                                                                
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 9



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

16 33112 00 00 WINNEMUCCA 
HOTEL LLC

LEASE PARCEL I-080-
HU-013.014

N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       5,400.00 22-Aug-12 31-Dec-17 NULL Lease TO LEASE PARCEL: I-080-HU-
013.014, HUMBOLDT COUNTY.                                                                               
NV B/L#: NV20011131286

17 34112 00 00 CHARLES 
SOLLENBERGER

INDEPENDENT MS 
252

N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       3,200.00 31-Aug-12 9-Aug-16 NULL Lease LEASE OF MAINTENANCE 
STATION HOUSE - 
INDEPENDENT 252 IN ELKO 
COUNTY.                                                                   
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

18 35512 00 00 DOUGLAS FARRIS RV LEASE AT 
MONTOMERY MS

N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $          300.00 12-Sep-12 31-Aug-13 NULL Lease LEASE OF A PARKING SPACE 
FOR AN RV AT 
MONTGOMERY 
MAINTENANCE STATION 
MINERAL COUNTY.                                                        
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

19 35612 00 00 FRED LOPEZ NORTHFORK 271 N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       3,000.00 12-Sep-12 2-Sep-16 NULL Lease LEASE OF HOUSE #271 AT 
NORTHFORK MAINTENANCE 
STATION, ELKO COUNTY                                                  
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

20 34212 00 00 ESRI INC EAP SOFTWARE 
LICENSE

N  $     105,093.00  $               -    $        105,093.00  $                 -   6-Sep-12 29-Aug-13 NULL License THE ENTERPRISE 
ADVANTAGE PROGRAM (EAP) 
- GIVES LICENSEE CERTAIN 
ENHANCED CONSULTING 
SERVICES, TRAINING, 
SUPPORT, AND 
MAINTENANCE FOR 
IMPLEMENTING A 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 
SYSTEM (GIS) ENTERPRISE 
SOLUTION. CARSON CITY.                              
NV B/L#: NV20111027035

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 10



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

21 37612 00 00 UPRR UPRR 2747.04 Y  $            545.00  $               -    $               545.00  $                 -   14-Sep-12 14-Sep-15 NULL License TO ACQUIRE A LICENSE OF 
THE RIGHT OF ENTRY FROM 
THE PORTION OF 
RAILROAD'S PROPERTY 
NEAR DUNPHY, IN EUREKA 
COUNTY. UPRR FOLDER NO. 
2747.04. EUREKA COUNTY.                                               
NV B/L: NV19691003146

22 33212 00 00 MICHAEL L/RENI 
PATANE

SALE OF U-095-CL-
078.146XS3

N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       3,638.40 22-Aug-12 31-Dec-15 NULL Property 
Sale

SALE OF LAND, PARCEL: U-
095-CL-078.146XS3 REAL 
PROPERTY SITUATED, LYING 
AND BEING IN THE CITY OF 
LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY.                                                                                         
NV B/L#: EXEMPT 

23 32412 00 00 HARVEY 
JAY/SHARLA 
FREEMAN

PERM ESMT U-050-
DO-003.855

N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $                 -   16-Aug-12 31-Dec-30 NULL ROW 
Access

TO ACCEPT AT NO COST TO 
STATE BY DONATION ONE (1) 
PERMANENT EASEMENT AND 
RIGHT-OF-WAY, PARCEL U-
050-DO-003.855, PORTION OF 
APN DOUGLAS COUNTY                                                                
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

24 33012 00 00 LAS VEGAS 
VALLEY WATER 
DISTRIC

COMMON USE ROW 
I-15 F ST PROJ

N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $                 -   22-Aug-12 31-Dec-17 NULL ROW 
Access

CONSENT TO COMMON USE 
"HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
APN 139-27-399-001,139-27-
399-133, 139-27-399-135, I-15 
F STREET PROJECT, CLARK 
COUNTY.                                                                   
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 11



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

25 33312 00 00 DAISY LAND 
HOLDING LLC

TEMP ESMT I-015-CL-
030.595

Y  $         9,000.00  $               -    $            9,000.00  $                 -   22-Aug-12 31-Dec-15 NULL ROW 
Access

TO ACQUIRE ONE (1) 
TEMPORARY EASEMENT 
PARCEL: I-015-CL-030.595 
FOR I-15 CACTUS PROJECT, 
CLARK COUNTY.                                                          
NV B/L#: NV19951006011

26 15512 00 01 CHAPMAN LAW 
FIRM

NDOT VS BLUE 
DIAMOND RV

N  $       82,425.00  $   88,250.00  $        170,675.00  $                 -   24-Apr-12 30-Apr-13 30-Aug-12 Service AMD 1: INCREASE 
AUTHORITY BY $88,250.00 
FROM $82,425.00 TO 
$170,675.00 TO PAY 
OUTSTANDING INVOICES 
AND ESTIMATED COSTS TO 
CONTINUE THE 
REPRESENTATION OF THE 
DEPARTMENT THROUGH THE 
CLOSE OF THE CASE THAT 
WAS SETTLED AT TRIAL ON 
07/29/12.REPRESENTATION 
BY MICHAEL G. CHAPMAN, 
ATTORNEY AT LAW, P.C. IN 
TH MATTER OF NDOT VS 
BLUE DIAMOND R.V. AND 
STORAGE, LLC V STATE 
OFNEVADA; CASE NO 
A610962 (8TH JD) RE: WORK 
ORDER 20359000. 
STATEWIDE.                                                                         
NV B/L#: NV20011462722

27 16412 00 00 CA GROUP INC. ROUNDABOUT 
TRAINING COURSE

N  $       20,200.00  $               -    $          20,200.00  $                 -   20-Aug-12 28-Sep-12 NULL Service TO DEVELOP AND PROVIDE A 
ROUNDABOUT TRAINING 
CLASS FOR NDOT 
PERSONNEL. CARSON CITY.                                                                                                                                                                                           
NV B/L: NV20081407877

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 12



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

28 25111 06 01 HDR 
ENGINEERING, 
INC.

COST RISK 
ASSESSMENT I-15 
SO.

N  $       73,341.41  $               -    $          73,341.41  $                 -   30-Mar-12 31-Dec-12 20-Aug-12 Service AMD 1: EXTEND THE TASK 
ORDER END DATE FROM 
09/21/12 TO 12/31/12 TO 
COMPLETE THE TASK.                                                                                                                                                                
COST RISK ASSESSMENT 
WORKSHOP FOR THE I-15 
SOUTH PROJECTS. THE 
WORKSHOP WILL BE FOR 
THE STARR AVENUE 
INTERCHANGE & FOR THE 
REMAINING CONCEPTUAL 
LEVEL PROJECTS ALONG 
THE CORRIDOR, STATEWIDE.                                                   
NV B/L#: NV19931069904

29 29812 00 00 GALENA GROUP 
INC

NEXTEL REBANDING 
PROJECT

N  $       24,000.00  $               -    $          24,000.00  $                 -   20-Aug-12 30-Jun-15 NULL Service ASSIST THE DEPARTMENT 
WITH NEGOTIATIONS 
BETWEEN SPRINT NEXTEL 
FOR THE REBANDING 
PROJECT, CARSON CITY AND 
WASHOE COUNTY.                                             
NV B/L #: NV2021368878

30 31312 00 00 AST CORP. ORACLE TRAINING & 
INSTALLATION

N  $     141,495.00  $               -    $        141,495.00  $                 -   13-Aug-12 30-Jun-13 NULL Service ORACLE TRAINING AND 
INSTALLATION SERVICES 
ARE NECESSARY FOR 
PROPER TRAINING AND USE 
OF THE ORACLE BUSINESS 
INTELLIGENCE BUNDLE, 
CARSON CITY.  BID 
THROUGH STATE 
PURCHASING                                
NV B/L#: NV20121457396

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 13



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

31 12211 03 00 AINSWORTH 
ASSOCIATES

DESIGN DPMT LAB 
BUILDING

N  $       13,000.00  $               -    $          13,000.00  $                 -   22-Aug-12 31-Dec-14 NULL Service 
Provider

TO PROVIDE PRELIMINARY 
DESIGN FIELD STUDY (PDFS) 
& DESIGN SERVICES FOR 
CORRECTIVE MEASURES 
FOR COOLING TOWER 
WATER LEAKAGE INTO THE 
DEPARTMENT'S  
LABORATORY BUILDING, 
CARSON CITY.                                    
NV B/L#: NV19751005286

32 12211 04 00 AINSWORTH 
ASSOCIATES

DESIGN SERVICES 
WINNEMUCCA

N  $       15,400.00  $               -    $          15,400.00  $                 -   22-Aug-12 31-Dec-14 NULL Service 
Provider

TO PROVIDE ELECTRICAL 
DESIGN SERVICES FOR MAIN 
ELECTRICAL FEED 
CORRECTION FOR THE 
PROGRESS LABORATORY 
BUILDING IN WINNEMUCCA, 
HUMBOLDT COUNTY.                                   
NV B/L#: NV19751005268

33 12211 05 00 AINSWORTH 
ASSOCIATES

REVIEW DESIGN 
WINN

N  $       14,400.00  $               -    $          14,400.00  $                 -   22-Aug-12 31-Dec-14 NULL Service 
Provider

PROVIDE MECHANICAL AND 
ELECTRICAL PLAN 
REVIEW/DESIGN OF 
DEPARTMENT IN-HOUSE 
DESIGN OF THE 
WINNEMUCCA LABORATORY 
RENOVATIONS, HUMBOLDT 
COUNTY.                                           
NV B/L#: NV19751005286

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 14



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

34 12211 06 00 AINSWORTH 
ASSOCIATES

DESIGN UPGRADES 
ELKO MS

N  $         4,000.00  $               -    $            4,000.00  $                 -   22-Aug-12 31-Dec-14 NULL Service 
Provider

TO PROVIDE DESIGN, 
SPECIFICATIONS, BIDDING 
AND CONSTRUCTION 
ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 
FOR MECHANICAL AND 
ELECTRICAL DESIGN OF THE 
DEPARTMENT'S 
LABORATORY  VENTILATION 
UPGRADES AT THE ELKO 
MAINTENANCE, ELKO 
COUNTY.                                                                       
NV B/L#: NV19751005268

35 23011 08 01 ORTH RODGERS & 
ASSOCIATES

RSA ON SR 163 Y  $       12,607.00  $               -    $          12,607.00  $                 -   5-Jun-12 22-Oct-12 7-Sep-12 Service 
Provider

AMD 1: TIME EXTENSION 
FROM 09/17/2012 TO 
10/22/2012 DUE TO 
SCHEDULING CONFLICTS 
WITH RSA TEAM 
MEMBERS.ROAD SAFETY 
AUDIT ON SR 163 FROM MP 
CL 0.00 TO 19.256. CLARK 
COUNTY.                                              
NV B/L# NV20001460282

36 23011 09 00 ORTH-RODGERS & 
ASSOC

RSA  US50 & SR207 
DO

Y  $       26,000.00  $               -    $          26,000.00  $                 -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-12 NULL Service 
Provider

RSA ON US 50 FROM MP DO 
0.000 TO MP 1.936 AND SR 
207 FROM MP DO 0.00 TO 
3.76. LOCATION: DOUGLAS 
COUNTY                                                               
NV B/L #: NV20001460282

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 15



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

37 23411 06 03 KIMLEY-HORN & 
ASSOCIATES

PEDESTRIAN RSA 
ON SAHARA AVE

Y  $       17,943.00  $               -    $          21,673.00  $                 -   19-Jan-12 1-Oct-12 28-Aug-12 Service 
Provider

AMD 3: EXTENDING 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 
08/31/12 TO 10/01/12 TO 
ALLOW COMPLETION OF 
PROJECT.                                                                                                                                             
AMD 2: INCREASE 
AUTHORITY BY $3,730.00 TO 
BRING AGREEMENT TOTAL 
TO $21,673.00 AND 
EXTENDING THE 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 
07/30/2012 TO 08/31/2012 TO 
ALLOW COMPLETION OF 
PROJECT.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
AMD 1: EXTENDING 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 
04/16/12 TO 07/30/12 TO 
ALLOW COMPLETION OF 
PROJECT.                                                                                                                                                                                                        
PERFORM PEDESTRIAN 
FOCUSED ROAD SAFETY 
AUDIT ON SAHARA  AVE 
FROM LAS VEGAS TO 
EASTERN AVE. CLARK 
COUNTY.                                                                                                                   
NV B/L #: NV19911015458

38 23411 09 01 KIMLEY HORN RSA ON US 95 Y  $       15,674.00  $               -    $          15,674.00  $                 -   24-Jul-12 9-Nov-12 28-Aug-12 Service 
Provider

AMD 1: EXTEND END DATE 
FROM 10/12/12 TO 11/09/12 
FOR THE COMPLETION OF 
THE PROJECT.ROAD SAFETY 
AUDIT ON US 95 FROM MP ES 
32.880 TO 44.194. 
ESMERALDA COUNTY.                                         
NV B/L#: NV19911015458

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 16



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

39 27711 00 01 HARRIS & 
ASSOCIATES

CONSTRUCTION 
FULL ADMIN SR306

N  $  2,454,624.51  $               -    $     2,454,624.51  $                 -   10-Oct-11 31-Dec-13 22-Aug-12 Service 
Provider

AMD #1: THE CONTRACT NO. 
SHALL BE CHANGED FROM 
D3-019-11 TO 3513.THE 
TERMINATION DATE 
EXTENDED FROM 12/31/2012 
TO 12/31/2013. PROVIDE 
CONSTRUCTION FULL 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
ON CONTRACT D3-019-11 SR 
306 EU0.48 TO 14.78 
MILEPOST. EUREKA COUNTY.                                                                                
NV B/L #: NV19951068132

40 32110 00 01 NEVADA 
BROADCASTERS 
ASSCC.

BROADCASTING, 
MARKETING

N  $     200,000.00  $   82,500.00  $        282,500.00  $                 -   1-Sep-10 31-Aug-13 31-Aug-12 Service 
Provider

AMD 1: INCREASE 
AUTHORITY BY $82,500.00 
FROM $200,000.00 TO 
$282,500.00 AND EXTEND 
END DATE FROM 08/31/2012 
TO 08/31/2013                                                                                    
PROVIDE BROADCAST 
MARKETING AND 
PROMOTION OF STATEWIDE 
AND REGIONAL SAFETY 
RELATED INITIATIVES AND 
ORTHER RELATED 
TRAVELER INFORMATION. 
STATEWIDE.                                                                                                                          
NV B/L#: NV19941133658

41 32912 00 00 FAAD JANITORIAL 1000 SPRINGS REST 
AREA

N  $     123,800.00  $               -    $        123,800.00  $                 -   24-Aug-12 31-Mar-15 NULL Service 
Provider

Q3-017-12 JANITORIAL 
SERVICES FOR THE 
THOUSAND SPRINGS REST 
AREA IN HUMBOLDT 
COUNTY.                                                               
NV B/L#:20041538232

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 17



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

42 33512 00 00 ARC LOGISITC 
DBA WOLTER 
KLUWER

TEAMMATE 
SOFTWARE 
TRAINING

N  $       24,000.00  $               -    $          24,000.00  $                 -   28-Aug-12 30-Jun-13 NULL Service 
Provider

IMPLEMENTATION AND 
TRAINING OF CCH 
TEAMMATE AUDIT 
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM, 
CARSON CITY.                                                                  
NV B/L#: NV20091261932

43 33612 00 00 ENCORE GROUP 
OF 
PROFESSIONALS

ORACLE P6 
TRAINING

N  $         6,900.00  $               -    $            6,900.00  $                 -   28-Aug-12 30-Jun-13 NULL Service 
Provider

TO PROVIDE ORACLE 
PRIMAVERA P6 TRAINING 
AND MIGRATION SERVICES, 
STATEWIDE.                                                       
NV B/L#: NV20091478859

44 33812 00 00 ZEE DESIGNS INC. DBE WEBSITE 
MAINTENANCE

N  $       10,000.00  $               -    $          10,000.00  $                 -   30-Aug-12 28-Feb-13 NULL Service 
Provider

SIX MONTH AGREEMENT TO 
ALLOW DISADVANTAGED 
BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
(DBE) WEBSITE 
MAINTENANCE AND HOSTING 
TO CONTINUE WHILE A NEW 
RFP IS CONDUCTED.  
STATEWIDE                                                                   
NV B/L#: NV20071293824

45 34312 00 00 E & M 
ENTERPRISES

PAYMENT FOR 
WORK AFTER 
EXPIRE

N  $       21,403.16  $               -    $          21,403.16  $                 -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-12 NULL Service 
Provider

AGREEMENT TO PAY FOR 
WORK DONE BEYOND THE 
EXPIRATION DATE OF P499-
11-158 IN CLARK COUNTY.                                                                
NV B/L#:20021355364

46 34412 00 00 MISSION LINEN 
SUPPLY

LAUNDRY N  $       77,410.54  $               -    $          77,410.54  $                 -   12-Sep-12 30-Sep-15 NULL Service 
Provider

Q1-002-13 to provide laundry 
services, Nye County.                                                 
NV B/L#: 20121451751

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 18



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

47 34512 00 00 PRECISION 
CRANE & HOIST

INSPECT CRANES N  $       17,600.00  $               -    $          17,600.00  $                 -   12-Sep-12 30-Nov-14 NULL Service 
Provider

Q1-001-13 TO INSPECT AND 
MAINTAIN CRANES, CLARK 
COUNTY                                                            
NV B/L#20051280421

48 35412 00 00 BISON 
CONSTRUCTION

RADIO SHOP 
IMPROVEMENTS

N  $       64,740.00  $               -    $          64,740.00  $                 -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-12 NULL Service 
Provider

QA-002-13 FOR RADIO SHOP 
IMPROVEMENTS, CARSON 
CITY                                                                       
NV B/L#19851012821

49 37211 01 00 BIOLOGIC & 
ENVIRONMENT 
CNSL

TORTOISE US95 N  $         6,454.75  $               -    $            6,454.75  $                 -   7-Sep-12 31-Dec-12 NULL Service 
Provider

THE US95 PROJECT 
CONSISTS OF CONDUCTING 
PRESENCE/ABSENCE 
SURVEYS OF TORTOISES 
AND CACTUS ESTAMITES ON 
THE NORTH AND SOUTH 
BOUND UNDISTURBED 
HABITAT AREAS OF US95. 
THE NORTH BOUND SIDE 
WILL BE SURVEYED FROM 
NYE COUNTY MP1 TO THE 
MERCURY INTERCHANGE. 
THE SOUTH BOUND SIDE OF 
US95 WILL BE SURVEYED  
FROM MERCURY 
INTERCHANGE TO INDIAN 
SPRINGS, CLARK AND NYE 
COUNTIES                                                             
NV B/L#: NV20081558348

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 19



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

50 37211 02 00 BIOLOGIC & 
ENVIRONMENT 
CNSL

TORTOISE I-15 N  $       19,402.00  $               -    $          19,402.00  $                 -   7-Sep-12 31-Dec-12 NULL Service 
Provider

THE I-15 PROJECT CONSISTS 
OF CONDUCTING TORTOISE 
PRESENCE/ABSENCE 
SURVEYS AND CACTUS 
ESTIMATES ON THE NORTH 
AND SOUTH BOUND 
UNDISTURBED HABITAT 
AREAS OF I-15 FROM THE 
DRY LAKES REST AREA TO 
1.602 MILES NORTH OF THE 
LOGANDALE/OVERTON 
INTERCHANGE (SR169). THE 
SURVEYS WILL BE 
CONDUCTED FROM MP 
69.905 TO 95.490. CLARK 
COUNTY                                                               
NV B/L#: NV20081558348

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 20



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

51 41211 00 02 SMART DATA 
STRATEGIES

DESIGN, ETC. OF 
IRWIN

N  $       36,520.65  $ 146,077.97  $        182,598.62  $                 -   1-Jul-11 30-Jun-13 30-Aug-12 Service 
Provider

AMD 2: INCREASING 
AUTHORITY BY $146,077.97 
FROM $36,520.65 TO 
$182,598.62 TO ADD TASK 18 
TO THE SCOPE OF WORK - 
TO ENSURE THE 
APPLICATION WILL 
FUNCTION UNDER THE NEW 
NDOT REQUIREMENT TO 
MOVE ALL APPLICATIONS TO 
THE ORACLE 11 DATABASE.                                                                                                                                                                    
AMD 1: EXTEND THE 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 
06/30/2012 TO 06/30/2013 FOR 
MAINTENANCE AND 
OPERATIONS OF THE 
SOFTWARE.                                                                                                                                              
DESIGN, IMPLEMENTATION 
AND ACQUISITION OF 
SOFTWARE AND 
MAINTENANCE OF IRWIN 
(INTEGRATED RIGHT-OF-WAY 
INFORMATION NETWORK). 
THIS IS A CONTINUATION OF 
A PREVIOUS AGREEMENT, 
P514-07-067. CARSON CITY.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
NV B/L #: NV20121402899

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 21



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

52 12411 00 02 CARSON CITY RTC BIKE/PED PATH 
ALONG N ROOP ST

Y  $     421,042.00  $               -    $        536,305.00  $     26,315.00 24-Mar-11 31-Dec-13 12-Sep-12 Stewardship AMD 2: EXTENDING THE 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12/31/12 TO 12/31/13 TO 
ALLOW COMPLETION OF 
PROJECT.                                                                                                                      
AMD 1: TO INCREASE 
FUNDING BY $105,263.00 TO 
BRING AGREEMENT TOTAL 
TO $526,305.00 IN CARSON 
CITY.                                                                                                                              
TO AUTHORIZE CARSON CITY 
RTC TO ADVERTISE, AWARD 
AND ADMINISTER A 
CONTRACT TO CONSTRUCT 
BIKE LANES AND 
PEDESTRIAN PATH ALONG 
NORTH ROOP STREET, 
CARSON CITY.                                                                                                                    
NV B/L#: EXEMPT

53 34612 00 00 CITY OF 
HENDERSON

FIBER OPTIC PECOS Y  $  3,051,649.00  $               -    $     3,051,649.00  $                 -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-15 NULL Stewardship INSTALL FIBER OPTIC ON 
PECOS ROAD, CLARK 
COUNTY                                                                           
NV B/L #: EXEMPT

54 34712 00 00 CITY OF 
HENDERSON

FIBER OPTIC ON 
VALLE VERDE

Y  $  2,705,916.00  $               -    $     2,705,916.00  $                 -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-15 NULL Stewardship INSTALL FIBER OPTIC ON 
VALLE VERDE RD, CLARK 
COUNTY                                                                                   
NV B/L #: EXEMPT

55 34812 00 00 CITY OF 
HENDERSON

INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENT

Y  $  1,138,500.00  $               -    $     1,138,500.00  $                 -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-15 NULL Stewardship INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS ON ST ROSE 
& MARYLAND, CLARK 
COUNTY                                            
NV B/L #: EXEMPT

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 22



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

56 34912 00 00 CITY OF 
HENDERSON

FIBER OPTIC 
SUNSET FROM 
ATHENI

Y  $     500,000.00  $               -    $        500,000.00  $                 -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-15 NULL Stewardship INSTALL FIBER OPTIC ON 
SUNSET ROAD FROM 
ATHENIAN TO SUNSET WAY, 
CLARK COUNTY                                                    
NV B/L #: EXEMPT

57 35012 00 00 CITY OF 
HENDERSON

8 BUS TURNOUTS LK 
MEAD

Y  $     850,000.00  $               -    $        850,000.00  $                 -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-15 NULL Stewardship CONSTRUCT 8 BUS 
TURNOUTS ON LAKE MEAD 
PKWY, CLARK COUNTY                                       
NV B/L #: EXEMPT

58 35112 00 00 WASHOE RTC INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENT 
PYRAM

Y  $28,503,750.00  $               -    $    28,503,750.00  $   947,800.00 12-Sep-12 30-Nov-16 NULL Stewardship INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS PYRAMID 
HWY AND MCCARRAN, 
WASHOE COUNTY                                                     
NV B/L #: EXEMPT

59 35212 00 00 CITY OF 
HENDERSON

FIBER OPTIC 
SUNSET FROM 
ANNIE

Y  $     531,742.00  $               -    $        531,742.00  $                 -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-15 NULL Stewardship INSTALL FIBER OPTIC ON 
SUNSET ROAD FROM ANNIE 
OAKLEY TO ATHENIAN, 
CLARK COUNTY                                                     
NV B/L #: EXEMPT

60 35912 00 00 MAGA TRUCKING TRUCKING PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 11-Sep-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                              
NV B/L#: NV19631001612

61 36012 00 00 WERDCO BC TRUCKING PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 6-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                                      
NV B/L#: NV19911033151

62 36112 00 00 SIERRA NEVADA 
CONSTRUCTION

TRUCKING PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 9-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                               
NV B/L#: NV19881009372

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 23



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

63 36212 00 00 PARKS 
EQUIPMENT

TRUCKING PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 12-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                 
NV B/L#: NV19991006587

64 36312 00 00 RENO TAHOE 
CONSTRUCTION

TRUCKING PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 13-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                   
NV B/L#: NV20001492996

65 36412 00 00 AGGREGATE 
INDUSTRIES

TRUCKING PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 10-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                
NV B/L#: NV19701000737

66 36512 00 00 ELEVATION 
TRANSPORT

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 6-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                          
NV B/L#: NV20071304784

67 36612 00 00 ANDERSON 
TOWING 
SERVICES

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 14-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                                             
NV B/L#: NV19781002116

68 36712 00 00 CAPURRO 
TRUCKING

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 6-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                      
NV B/L#: NV20001206844

69 36812 00 00 D L DENMAN 
CONTSTRUCTION

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 8-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                                
NV B/L#: NV20081499925

70 36912 00 00 A&K 
EARTHMOVERS

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 11-Sep-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                       
NV B/L#: NV19651001305

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 24



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task 
No

Amend 
No

Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable Amount  Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Note

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Under $300,000
August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

71 37012 00 00 CHRISTIAN 
ENTERPRISES INC

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 13-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                               
NV B/L#: NV19841011458

72 37112 00 00 GRANITE 
CONSTRUCTION

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 11-Sep-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                
NV B/L#: NV19631001612

73 37212 00 00 GLACIER 
CONSTRUCTION

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 11-Sep-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                
NV B/L#: NV20051532917

74 37312 00 00 STONE 
BROTHERS INC

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 7-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                                  
NV B/L#: NV19991230802

75 37412 00 00 VISTA 
LANDSCAPE

TRUCK PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 6-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                               
NV B/L#: NV19921053360

76 37512 00 00 PAUL DELONG 
HEAVY HAUL

TRUCKING PERMIT N  $                   -    $               -    $                       -    $       1,200.00 22-Aug-12 31-Dec-16 NULL Truck 
Permits

OVERDIMENSIONAL 
TRUCKING PERMIT. 
STATEWIDE                                                                
NV B/L#: NV2011179784

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 25



Attachment  

C 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 26



Attachment C

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Task No Amend No Contractor Purpose Fed  Original 
Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable 
Amount 

 
Receivable 
Amount 

Start Date End Date Amend 
Date

Agree Type Note

1 35712 00 00 LAS VEGAS 
PAVING

BYPASS 
BRIDGE 
REPAIR

N  $  522,000.00  $              -    $522,000.00  $           -   12-Sep-12 31-Dec-12 NULL Emergency EMERGENCY AGREEMENT FOR 
REPAIR OF HOOVER DAM 
BYPASS BRIDGE INCLUDING SOIL 
STABILIZATION IN CLARK 
COUNTY.                                                                   
NV B/L#:19581000650

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Emergency Agreements Executed

August 20, 2012 to September 14, 2012

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 27



Attachment  

D 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 28



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 29



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 30



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 31



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 32



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 33



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 34



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 35



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                      Page 36















































































































































Attachment 3









































































































































 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 September 20, 2012 
 

TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: October 8, 2012 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 13: Briefing on I-15 Mobility Alliance – Informational Item Only 
  
 
Summary:  
 
Over the past two years, NDOT has taken the lead on the I-15 Corridor System Master Plan and 
the creation of the I-15 Mobility Alliance.  The plan includes a comprehensive, multi-modal, 
multistate plan from San Diego to Northern Utah.  This effort brought together traditional and 
nontraditional transportation partners including, but not limited to, state DOT’s, MPOs, ports, 
railroads, resource agency, trucking associations, and others. 
 
In addition to an accessible plan, this effort resulted in 16 technical memorandums, a list of 
immediate projects of interregional significance, 10 years worth of prioritized projects and 40+ 
years of time stratified projects.  
 
The I-15 Mobility Alliance and its partners have been the recipients of two TIGER Grants, a 
Multistate Corridor Operations and Management Program Grant, and other discretionary grant 
programs. 
 
Staff would like to update the Board on the progress and next steps for the I-15 Mobility 
Alliance. 
 
Background: 
 
In 2007, the I-15 Corridor from San Diego to Salt Lake City was selected as one of six 
“Corridors of the Future.”  With that designation, came some funding, an agreement between 
USDOT and the states of California, Nevada, Arizona, and Utah.  Since then, the program was 
discontinued.  However, Director Martinovich determined that this corridor and this partnership 
was too important not to continue this partnership.  In 2010, the NDOT initiated a new effort to 
strengthen this partnership and look at long-term multimodal strategic planning for this critical 
corridor.  A new multistate agreement was signed and the four states have been working 
together toward a comprehensive master plan.  The I-15 Corridor System Master Plan was 
published in March 2012 and is supported by 16 technical memorandums.  This effort included 
a prioritized list of projects for which the partner agencies have agreed to support for 
discretionary programs.  Through this effort, the Alliance has been recognized on numerous 
occasions.  Most recently, the I-15 Alliance was selected as one of six recipients of the 
Multistate Corridor Operations and Management Program.  Other recipients include the I-95 
Coalition and the West Coast Corridor Coalition, entities that have been around for much longer 
than this Alliance, yet I-15 is now considered among those at the forefront of multistate 
partnerships for transportation.  

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



 

Analysis:  
 
NDOT will be receiving $1,250,000 through this program for multi-state corridor-wide traveler 
information, ITS communications, and other operational coordination between states.  The 
funding will be matched with $100,000 from each NDOT, Caltrans, Utah DOT, and $25,000 from 
RTC Southern Nevada. 
 
List of Attachments:   
 
A. I-15 Corridor System Master Plan 
 
Recommendation for Board Action:   
 
Information item only 
 
Prepared by:   
 
Sondra Rosenberg, Federal Programs Manager 
 

http://www.i15alliance.org/pdfs/I-15_MasterPlan_2012-March_Final_sm.pdf


 

 

 

  
MEMORANDUM 

September 20, 2012 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: October 8, 2012 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #14: Old Business – Informational Item Only 
  
 
Summary: 
 
This item is to provide follow up and ongoing information brought up at previous Board 
Meetings. 
 
Analysis: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment A. 
 
b. Briefing on Freeway Service Patrol - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment B. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
A.   Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 
B. Briefing on Freeway Service Patrol - Informational item only. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Rudy Malfabon, Director 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



Contract Per iod Contract and Amendment Date

Watt, Tieder, Hoffar & Fitzgerald Construction Claims of Fisher Sand & Gravel  
Contract #3292
 (I-580 Mt. Rose Hwy to Bowers Extension)
NDOT Agmt No.  P267-07-004

 02/01/07 - 02/01/13 2/1/2007 15,000.00$                      

 Amendment #1 7/1/2008 35,000.00$                      
 Amendment #2 11/24/2008 100,000.00$                    
 Amendment #3 3/23/2009 200,000.00$                    
 Amendment #4 11/20/2009 50,000.00$                      
 Amendment #5 7/8/2011 Extension of Time 400,000.00$                $                   38,528.29 

Nossaman, LLP Pioneer Program
 Legal and Financial Planning
NDOT Agmt No. 282-09-002

 9/23/09 - 7/1/13 9/23/2009  $                   125,000.00 

 Amendment #1 2/23/2010  $                     80,000.00 
 Amendment #2 10/6/2010  $                     30,000.00 
 Amendment #3 10/26/2010  $                     30,000.00 
 Amendment #4 8/31/2011  $                   365,000.00  $               630,000.00  $                 238,700.89 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Ad America
 8th JD  - 4 Eminent Domain Cases
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P301-11-004

6/14/2011 - 12/31/12 6/14/2011  $                   281,675.00 

 Amendment #1 8/30/2012  Expansion of Scope  $               281,675.00  $                 210,333.24 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT
1st JD 120C 00030 1B
 Contract # 3407 (Wells Wildlife Crossing)
 NDOT Agmt No. P082-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                   150,000.00 

 $               150,000.00  $                   74,709.38 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT
1st JD 120C 00032 1B
Contract # 3377 (Kingsbury Grade)
 NDOT Agmt No. P083-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                   150,000.00 

 $               150,000.00  $                   43,617.07 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Construction Claims Williams Brother, Inc.
Contract # 3392 (Various in Las Vegas) NDOT 
Agmt No. P084-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                     30,000.00 

 $                30,000.00  $                   28,422.50 

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF 9/17/2012
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Author ity
Contract Author ity 

Remaining

Attachment A



Contract Per iod Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF 9/17/2012
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Author ity
Contract Author ity 

Remaining

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Blue Diamond R.V. and Storage
 8th JD A610962
RE:  Work Order 20359000
NDOT Agmt No. P155-12-004

4/24/2012 - 4/24/14 4/24/2012  $                     82,425.00 

 Amendment #1 8/30/2012  $                     88,250.00  $               170,675.00  $                   30,714.22 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Vegas Group, LLC
 8th JD A-12-661241-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P156-12-004

4/24/12 - 4/24/14 4/24/2012  $                   416,800.00 

 $               416,800.00  $                 342,136.78 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Carrie Sanders
8th JD - A-12-664693-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P192-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                   416,800.00 

 $               416,800.00  $                 413,692.69 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Gendall
 8th JD - A-12-666487-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P325-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                   416,800.00 

 $               416,800.00  $                 415,511.50 

* BH Consulting Agreement Management assistance, policy 
cecommendations, negotiation support and 
advice regarding NEXTEL and Re-channeling 
of NDOT's 800 Mhz frequencies.

6/30/12 - 6/30/16 6/30/2012  $                     77,750.00 

 $                77,750.00  $                   77,750.00 
*  Pass Through - Federally mandated 800 MHz rebanding project fully reimbursed by Sprint Nextel.

Attachment A



    Freeway Service Patrol Program 
 
 

Events such as vehicular crashes, breakdowns, and debris in travel lanes are the most common form of 
incidents. In addition to blocking travel lanes physically, events that occur on the shoulder or roadside can 
also influence traffic flow by distracting drivers, leading to changes in driver behavior and ultimately 
degrading the quality of traffic flow. The Freeway Service Patrol (FSP) program helps to lessen the impacts 
of these incidents. 

 
Freeway Service Patrol vehicles are equipped with the necessary tools and 
supplies to effectively address a wide variety of roadway incidents including, but 
not limited to, disabled vehicles, accident scenes, lost motorists, sick or injured 
motorists, pedestrians on roadway, animals on roadways, travel lane or 
shoulder debris, vehicle fires, fuel leaks, and other incidents that can be 
mitigated by the FSP driver. There are currently four vehicles patrolling 
approximately one hundred miles in the Reno/Sparks region and six vehicles 
patrolling approximately one hundred seventy-eight miles in the Las Vegas region. The patrol routes and 
hours of operation coincide with peak daily traffic volumes and special events to minimize congestion 
periods. 

Incident Response Vehicles (IRV) will be incorporated into our service patrol fleet in 2013.  Initially, there will 
be two IRVs in the Las Vegas area and one in the Reno/Sparks area as part of a pilot program.  IRV drivers 
will have vehicles equipped to better respond to incidents resulting in lane closures and other major 
incidents, and they will provide enhanced emergency response capabilities such as temporary traffic control 
devices and traffic control services as requested by law enforcement and emergency response personnel. 
 
The Nevada FSP results in numerous benefits to the traveling public and first responders: 
 Enhanced visibility and increased protection of stranded motorists on the shoulder of the highway with 

the use of FSP lights, cones, and other traffic control devices  
 Prevention of secondary incidents because of quick clearance of incidents, vehicles, and debris  
 Quicker detection rate of incidents and motorists in need by roving FSP operations 
 FSP response to minor incidents enables law enforcement to focus on major incidents and critical law 

enforcement duties  
 Reduced congestion and delay (including reduced fuel consumption and emissions) due to quick 

clearance of incident 

Since September of 2007 we have received 15,790 comment cards from motorists with 99.99% positive 
remarks.  

Current  Nevada Freeway Service Patrol Program Incident Responses 

  

2011 2010 2009 2008 

 FSP Responses in the Reno/Sparks Region  
  Incident Totals 13,882 13,058 15,243 18,660 
  Total Costs $786,490 $652,629 $499,799 $506,480 

 
Cost per Incident $57 $50 $33 $27 

 FSP Responses in the Las Vegas Region    
  Las Vegas Incident Totals 40,552 43,667 50,880 51,210 
  Las Vegas Totals $1,532,732 $1,408,083 $1,407,339 $1,426,782 

 
Cost per Incident $38 $32 $28 $28 

 

Attachment B

http://www.nevadadot.com/

	Agenda
	Item 2
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Attachment A
	Line Item 1
	Line Item 2


	Item 7
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D

	Item 8a
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4

	Item 9a
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4
	Attachment 5
	Attachment 6
	Attachment 7

	Item 9b
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4
	Attachment 5
	Attachment 6

	Item 10a
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4

	Item 11a
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4
	Attachment 5
	Attachment 6

	Item 12
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	Item 13
	Item 14
	Attachment A
	Attachment B




